
 

  www.wincoil.us | Page 1  

 
REVISED 
AGENDA 

 
Winnebago County Courthouse  

400 West State Street, Rockford, IL 61101 
County Board Room, 8th Floor 

 
Thursday, February 23, 2023 

6:00 p.m. 
 

1. Call to Order  ............................................................................... Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 
2. Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance ...................................... Board Member Brad Lindmark 
 
3. Agenda Announcements .............................................................. Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 
4. Roll Call ................................................................................................ Clerk Lori Gummow 
 
5. Awards, Presentations, Public Hearings and Public Participation 

A. Awards – None 
B. Presentations – None 
C. Public Hearings – None 
D. Public Participation – Rev. Earl Dotson, Sr., West Side Rockford Redevelopment, Pro 

Nancy Edwardsen – County Jail Room and Inmate Cash ATM, Con 
 

6. Approval of Minutes .................................................................... Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
A. Approval of January 26, 2023 minutes  
B. Layover of February 9, 2023 minutes  

 
7. Consent Agenda………………………………………………………………………….Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 

A. Raffle Report   
B. Auditor’s Report 

 
8. Appointments (Per County Board rules, Board Chairman appointments require a 30-day 

layover unless there is a suspension of the rule). 
A. Emergency Telephone System Board (ETSB), Annual Compensation:  None 

1. Win-Bur-Sew Fire Protection District Chief David Loria (New Appointment), 
Winnebago, Illinois, February 2023 to February 2026 

B. Extension Board 
1. Aaron Booker (Reappointment), Pecatonica, Illinois, February 2023 to February 2025 
2. Jim Webster (Reappointment), Rockton, Illinois, February 2023 to February 2025   



www.wincoil.us | Page 2  

3. Christopher Scrol (New Appointment), Rockford, Illinois, February 2023 to February 
2025  

 
9. Reports of Standing Committees ………………………………………………….Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 

 
A. Finance Committee ....................................................... John Butitta, Committee Chairman 

1. Committee Report 
2. An Ordinance Abating the 2012C State Income Tax Alternate Bond Property Tax Levy 

for the year 2022 Payable 2023 to be Laid Over 
3. An Ordinance to Abate the 2016A Public Safety Sales Tax Alternative Bond Property 

Tax Levy for the Year 2022 Payable 2023 to be Laid Over 
4. An Ordinance to Abate the 2016D Public Safety Sales Tax Alternative Bond Property 

Tax Levy for the Year 2022 Payable 2023 to be Laid Over 
5. An Ordinance to Abate the 2016E Public Safety Sales Tax Alternative Bond Property Tax 

Levy for the Year 2022 Payable 2023 to be Laid Over 
6. An Ordinance to Abate the 2017C Tort Property Tax and Quarter Cent Sales Tax 

Alternative Bond Property Tax Levy for the Year 2022 Payable 2023 to be Laid Over 
7. An Ordinance Abating the Tax hereto Levied for the Year 2022 Payable 2023 to Pay the 

Principle of and Interest on Taxable General Obligation Bonds (Alternative Revenue 
Source) Series 2018 of Winnebago County, Illinois to be Laid Over 

8. An Ordinance to Abate the 2020A Alternative Revenue Bond Property Tax Levy for the 
Year 2022 Payable 2023 to be Laid Over 

9. An Ordinance to Abate the 2020B Alternative Revenue Bond Property Tax Levy for the 
Year 2022 Payable 2023 to be Laid Over 

10. An Ordinance to Abate the General Obligation Refunding Bonds (Alternate Revenue 
Source), Series 2021A Bond Property Tax Levy for the Year 2022 Payable 2023 to be 
Laid Over 

11. An Ordinance to Abate the General Obligation Refunding Bonds (Alternate Revenue 
Source), Series 2021B Bond Property Tax Levy for the Year 2022 Payable 2023 to be 
Laid Over 

12. An Ordinance to Abate the General Obligation Alternate Refunding Bonds (Public 
Safety Sales Tax Alternate Revenue Source), Series 2022 Bonds Property Tax Levy for 
the Year 2022 Payable 2023 to be Laid Over 

13. An Ordinance Abating Special Tax Roll for 2022 Levy Year for Properties within the 
Special Service Area for the I39 Baxter Road County Water District Project to be Laid 
Over 

14. Resolution Modifying the Budget of an American Recovery Act Project for RP011 
Animal Service Building Contingency 

15. Ordinance to Amend the Budget for Inmate Medical Contract to be Laid Over 
16. Resolution Authorizing Settlement of a Claim against the County of Winnebago entitled 

James Neal versus Winnebago County  
 

B. Zoning Committee ........................................................ Jim Webster, Committee Chairman 
Planning and/or Zoning Requests: 

1. Z-01-23 A map amendment to rezone 5.0+- acres from the AG, Agricultural Priority 
District to the RA, Rural Agricultural Residential District (a sub-district of the RA District) 



www.wincoil.us | Page 3  

for the property that is commonly known as 16843 Hartman Road, Davis, IL 61019 in 
Laona Township, District 2 to be laid over 

2. Z-02-23 A map amendment to rezone 1.99+- acres from the RR, Rural Residential 
District (a sub-district of the RA District) to the RE, Rural Estate Residential District (a 
sub-district of the RA District) for the property that is commonly known as 6499 Alice 
Lane, Rockton, IL 61072 in Shirland Township, District 2 to be laid over 

3. A Resolution calling for the Governor and General Assembly to Protect Local Control of 
Zoning and Land Use with regard to Commercial Solar Farms and Wind Power Energy 
Facilities (Wind Farms) (Illinois House Bill 4412/Public Act 102-1123) 

4. Committee Report                    
 

C. Economic Development Committee .......................... John Sweeney, Committee Chairman 
1. Committee Report 
2. Resolution Electing to Opt-In to the Illinois Electronics Recycling Program for Program 

Year 2024 
 

D. Operations and Administrative Committee ............ Keith McDonald, Committee Chairman 
1. Committee Report 
                  

E. Public Works Committee ............................................. Dave Tassoni, Committee Chairman 
1. Committee Report 

 
F. Public Safety and Judiciary Committee……………………Brad Lindmark, Committee Chairman 

1. Committee Report 
2. Resolution Authorizing the County Board Chairman to Amend Contract for Health Care 

Services for Detainees of the Juvenile Detention Center   
3. Resolution Authorizing the County Board Chairman to Amend Contract for Health Care 

Services for the Inmates of the Winnebago County Jail 
4. Ordinance Amending Chapter 14 of the Winnebago County Code of Ordinances 

Regarding Registration and Inoculation Requirements for Dogs and Cats to be Laid Over 
 

10. Unfinished Business …………………………….……………………………………..Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 
Finance Committee 

A. Ordinance for Approval of Budget Amendment for the Circuit Clerk Laid Over from 
February 9, 2023 Meeting  

B. Ordinance for Approval of a Budget Adjustment for the Sheriff’s Office Laid Over from 
February 9, 2023 Meeting 

Appointments 

A. River Bluff Board of Directors, Annual Compensation:  None 
1.   Jim Knutson (New Appointment), Rockford, Illinois, March 2023 to March 2027 
2. Teresa Gobeli (New Appointment), Winnebago, Illinois, March 2023 to March 2027      
3. Trent Brass (New Appointment), Rockford, Illinois, March 2023 to March 2027 
4. Bob Nieman (New Appointment), Rockford, Illinois, March 2023 to March 2027 



www.wincoil.us | Page 4  

5. Jay Ferraro (New Appointment), Rockford, Illinois, March 2023 to March 2027 
6. Steve Schultz (New Appointment), Roscoe, Illinois, March 2023 to March 2027 
7. Frank Perrecone (New Appointment), Rockford, Illinois, March 2023 to March 2027 
8. Bernice Marinelli (New Appointment), Rockford, Illinois, March 2023 to March 2027 
9. John Butitta (New Appointment), Rockford, Illinois, March 2023 to March 2027 

 
11. New Business………………………………………………………………………………Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 

(Per County Board rules, passage will require a suspension of Board rules). 
 

12. Announcements & Communications ..................................................... Clerk Lori Gummow 
A. Correspondence (see packet)   

 
13.  Adjournment …………………………………………………………………………..….Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 

Next Meeting:  Thursday, March 9, 2023 



 

  
Awards,  

Presentations,  
Public Hearings  

and Public Participation 

 
 



 

 Approval of 
Minutes 

 























 

CONSENT 
AGENDA 











 

  
Appointments 

 
 



 
  

 

 
               404 Elm Street • Room 533 • Rockford, IL 61101 | Website: www.WinCoIL.us 
It is our mission to provide high quality services and promote a safe community for all people in Winnebago County. 

 

Executive Summary 
Date: February 23 2023 
From: County Board Chairman Joseph V. Chiarelli 
Topic: 911 ETS Board Appointment 
 
State of Illinois Public Act 099-0634 requires disclosure of appointments to local public entities. 
 
County Code Chapter 2, Article II, Division 4, Section 2-88 states, “The chairman shall make all 
appointments to commissions, boards, authorities, or special districts with the advice and consent of the 
county board, or as otherwise provided by law.” 
 
Recommendation: County Board Chairman Joseph V. Chiarelli recommends the following person to 
serve as County appointee: 
…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………. 
 
Win-Bur-Sew Fire Protection District Chief David Loria of Winnebago, Illinois, to serve a 3-
year term from February 2023-February 2026 as a Rural Fire Protection District Chief on the 
911 Emergency Telephone System Board. 
 

 911 Emergency Telephone System Board (ETSB)  

Location:   204 S. First Street   
Rockford, IL 61104   

Service Description:  
Planning a 9-1-1 System; coordinating and supervising the implementation and 
maintenance of the system, including the establishment of equipment specifications 
and coding systems.  Authorizing disbursement from the ETS Fund.   



  2 

Board Composition:  

 11 Board members:  
o Winnebago County Sheriff  
o    Chief of Police for City of Rockford  
o    Fire Chief for City of Rockford  
o    Chief of Police for City of Loves Park  
o    Chief of Police for City of South Beloit  
o Representative of the Village of Machesney Park Emergency Services 

Department   
i. Shall be appointed by the Chairman of the County Board, with the 

advice and consent of the County Board, upon the recommendation 
of the President of the Board of Trustees of that municipality  

o Fire Chief from a Rural Fire Protection District  
i. Shall be appointed by the Chairman of the County Board, with the 

advice and consent of the County Board, upon recommendation of 
the Winnebago County Fire Chief’s  
Association  

o Four (4) At Large residents of the County shall be appointed by the Chairman 
of the County Board with the advice and consent of the County Board.   

i. at least one (1) shall be a currently active or retired fire fighter  
ii. at least one (1) shall be a currently active or retired peace officer   
iii. One (1) public member who is a resident of the local exchange 

service territory included in the 911 coverage area  
iv. One (1) representative of the 911 public safety agencies, including 

but not limited to police departments, fire departments, emergency 
medical services providers, and emergency services and disaster 
agencies  

Elected Officials are eligible to serve on the Board 
Terms: Three (3) Years for Fire Chief from a Rural Fire Protection District and four (4)    
At Large Members – all others permanent appointments 

Bond:  none 

Attorney:  Attorney John H. Kelly Ottosen DiNolfo Hasenbalg & Castaldo, Ltd.  

Compensation:  None  
Meetings:  2nd Tuesday of the month 9 am 

Origin of Entity:  Established by referendum in 1990  
https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs3.asp?ActID=741&ChapterID=11  

Property Tax/Funding:  Wireline and wireless telephone surcharge imposed on subscribers’ bills  

Consolidation/ 
Dissolution Plans:  If applicable   

 

https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs3.asp?ActID=741&ChapterID=11
https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs3.asp?ActID=741&ChapterID=11
https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs3.asp?ActID=741&ChapterID=11


Win-Bur-Sew Fire Protection District 
110 East Main Street, PO Box 595, Winnebago, IL 61088 

Phone 815/335-2651   Fax 815/335-1104 
 

Winnebago County Board Chairman Joseph V. Chiarelli 
 & Winnebago County Board  
404 Elm St 
Rockford, Illinois 61101 
 
 
Chairman Chiarelli and Winnebago County Board members,   
 
Purpose of this letter is to communicate my interest for appointment to the Rural Fire Chief 
position on the Emergency Telephone System Board (ETSB). I understand that by ordinance this 
is a 3-year position, with monthly meetings on the second Tuesday of the month at 0900AM.  
 
My interest stems from my 28-year involvement with fire and EMS in the private, volunteer, and 
contractual environments.  Personal/professional history has allowed me to work in both rural and 
urban settings in Boone and Winnebago counties.  
  
As Fire Chief for Win Bur Sew FPD, I enjoy the perspective of the rural part of the county as well 
as representing the geographic western county service area.  
Dispatch centers serve as point of access for emergency services. Providing emergency services 
for a population in excess of 282,000 citizens can be complex and challenging.  
 
I would welcome the task of addressing those challenges and working with the ETSB board 
members to resolve issues. 
 
 
Thank you for your consideration. 
 
 
Fire Chief Dave Loria    EMT-P 
Win Bur Sew Fire Protection District 
110 E Main 
Winnebago, Illinois 61088 
(cell)           815-979-0278 
(station)     815-335-2651 
(fax)           815-335-1104 
(email)     dloria@wbsfire.com 
 
 

mailto:dloria@wbsfire.com
mailto:dloria@wbsfire.com


David E. Loria, MSW, EMT-Paramedic__________________________ 
 
Cell: 815-979-0278                                                                        8983 Cemetery Rd  
e-mail: dloria@wbsfire.com                                                           Winnebago, Illinois 61088 
 
Win Bur Sew Fire Protection District                           1995-present 
Fire Chief              01-13-2020- present  
Acting Chief          11-16-2019 thru 11-13-2020 
Deputy Chief         03-2015 thru 11-2019 
Captain                 2009 thru 2015 
Lieutenant            2006 thru 2009 
Firefighter            1995-present 
 
AMR/Kurtz; New Lenox, Illinois                                   1-2022- present  
PRN Paramedic to assist with ambulance staffing on contract with Win Bur Sew FPD   
  
 
OSF Lifeline Ambulance; Rockford, IL.            2006-2019 
CCEMT-Paramedic Supervisor 
Duties: Part of management team that oversees approximately 65 employees. Duties involved 
oversight of fleet maintenance of 19 vehicles, equipment/supply inventory and 
procurement, Also, involved in QA/QI process, training, and orientation of new hires. Provided 
onsite as well as on call supervision to shift personnel. Oversight for day 
to day operations. Oversight for Critical Care Transport Program.  Preceptor in good standing 
in OSF Northern Region EMS and Mercy Rockford EMS. 
 
OSF Lifeline Ambulance; Rockford, lL                        2000-2006 
EMT-Paramedic 
Duties: Provide both BLS and ALS pre-hospital care and inter-facility transports. Preceptor in 
good standing in OSF Northern Region EMS and Mercy Rockford EMS. 
 
Metro Medical Services; Rockford, lL                             1999-2000 
EMT-Paramedic 
Duties: Provide both BLS and ALS pre-hospital care and inter-facility transports 
 
Rockford Memorial Hospital; Rockford, lL                1999-2000 
Emergency Room Tech 
Duties: Assist emergency room nurses and physicians with care and treatment of patients, 
triage patients, initiate blood draws for lab, established lVs, plaster/fiberglass splinting of 
fracture sites, patient care procedures and duties.. 
 
Dave Loria Construction Winnebago, lL                    1981-2006 
Self Employed Business Owner 
Remodeling and Construction Business 
8983 Cemetery Rd. 
Winnebago, lL 61088 
 
 
 

mailto:dloria@wbsfire.com
mailto:dloria@wbsfire.com


 
Illinois Department of Children and Family Services; Rockford, lL    1979-1981 
Social Worker II/Caseworker 
Duties: Provide follow up services to families adjudicated to be neglectful or at risk of 
neglectful/abusive circumstances. Work with State's Attorney Office, Juvenile Court System, 
Police/Sheriff Departments and foster parents. Provide investigation and monitoring of families at 
risk of neglect/abuse. 
 
EDUCATION: 
Masters of Social Work, 1978 
University of Illinois 
Champaign/Urbana, Illinois 
 
Bachelors of Science, 1977 
Law Enforcement Administration and Sociology 
Western Illinois University 
Macomb, Illinois 
 
High School Diploma   1973 
Maine South High school  
Park Ridge, Illinois  
 
Certifications/Licenses 

• Illinois Licensed EMT-Paramedic   1999- present  
• Critical Care Emergency Medical Transport Certification (CCEMTP)  2009-2021 
• Pediatric Advanced Life Support (PALS] 
• Advanced Cardiac Life Support (ACLS] 
• CPR Certified 
• NIMS 100, 200, 700, 800 

 
COMMUNITY INVOLVMENT: 
 
IDPH EMS Advisory Council Member                                       9-2O12 thru 10-2019 
 
Win-Bur-Sew Fire Protection Dstrict Winnebago, lL                      1995-Present 
Volunteer Fire Fighter; Deputy Chief of EMS 
Duties: Participate in EMS and fire suppression duties for volunteer fire department. 
Responsible for data entry, EMS supply inventory, monthly pharmaceutical inventory, and EMS 
training. 
 
Burritt Community Church Winnebago, lL                                    2OO6 thru 2011 
Appalachian Service Project: 
Duties: Provide youth leadership while rehabilitating homes in impoverished areas of 
Kentucky and Virginia. 
 
Burritt Community Church Winnebago, lL                                     2007 thru 2012 
Church Trustee 
Duties: Oversee operational and maintenance needs of the church. 
 



 
  

 

 
               404 Elm Street • Room 533 • Rockford, IL 61101 | Website: www.WinCoIL.us 
It is our mission to provide high quality services and promote a safe community for all people in Winnebago County. 

 

Executive Summary 
Date: February 23 2023 
From: County Board Chairman Joseph V. Chiarelli 
Topic: Extension Board Appointments 
 
State of Illinois Public Act 099-0634 requires disclosure of appointments to local public entities. 
 
County Code Chapter 2, Article II, Division 4, Section 2-88 states, “The chairman shall make all 
appointments to commissions, boards, authorities, or special districts with the advice and consent of the 
county board, or as otherwise provided by law.” 
 
Recommendation: County Board Chairman Joseph V. Chiarelli recommends the following persons to 
serve as County appointees: 
…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………. 
 
Aaron Booker (reappointment), Pecatonica, Illinois; Jim Webster (reappointment), Rockton, 
Illinois and Christopher Scrol (new appointment), Rockford, Illinois to serve 2-year terms from 
February 2023-February 2025  
 

 
 Extension Board   

Location:  1040 N. Second Street, Rockford, IL 61107   

Service Description:  Provides Extension services to Winnebago, Jo Davies and Stephenson counties using 
the University of Illinois resources.   

Board Composition:  Seven (7) members, three (3) appointed by the County Board Chairman with the advice 
and consent of the County Board   

Compensation:  None  

Bond:  None  

Attorney:  None  

Meetings:  As needed (4-5 times/year)  

Origin of Entity:  County Cooperative Extension Law (505 ILCS 45/7)   

Property 
Tax/Funding:  

Funding from the University of Illinois, Agricultural Premium Fund, member Counties, 
and charges for services   

Consolidation/ 
Dissolution Plans:  If applicable  

 

https://extension.illinois.edu/jsw
https://extension.illinois.edu/jsw
https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs3.asp?ActID=1680&ChapterID=40
https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs3.asp?ActID=1680&ChapterID=40
https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs3.asp?ActID=1680&ChapterID=40
https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs3.asp?ActID=1680&ChapterID=40


 

 
Reports of 
Standing 

Committees 
 
 
 



 

FINANCE 
COMMITTEE 



 

  

 

Resolution Executive Summary 
 
Prepared By:   David J. Rickert - Chief Financial Officer 

Committee:   Finance Committee 

Committee Date:    February 16th, 2023 
 
Resolution Title: An Ordinance abating the 2012C State Income Tax Alternate Bond Property Tax  
   Levy for the year 2022 Payable 2023. 

County Code:   Not Applicable 

Board Meeting Date:  February 23rd, 2023 
 
Budget Information:  
 

Was item budgeted?    Yes                                                       Appropriation Amount:  Not Applicable 

If not, explain funding source:   Not Applicable 

ORG/OBJ/Project Code:  Not Applicable Budget Impact:   None  
 
Background Information:   
 
The County has issued a number of alternate bonds which have tax levies filed with the County Clerk. The 
abatement ordinances abate the tax levies filed for the alternate bonds for tax year 2022 payable 2023. 
The abatements must pass on or before tax extensions are done by the County Clerk. 
 
Recommendation:  

Approval of the ordinance abating the 2012C State Income Tax Alternate Bond Property Tax Levy for the 
year 2022 payable 2023. 

 
Contract/ Agreement: Not Applicable  
 
 
Legal Review: Yes, done in previous years. The dollar amount changes each year. 



County Board:  02-23-2023 
 

 
ORDINANCE OF THE COUNTY BOARD  

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 

Sponsored by:  John Butitta, Committee Chairman 
Submitted by:  Finance Committee 

2023 CO 
 

ORDINANCE TO ABATE THE 2012C STATE INCOME TAX ALTERNATE BOND 
PROPERTY TAX LEVY FOR THE YEAR 2022 PAYABLE 2023  

 
WHEREAS, on June 12, 2003 the County Board of the County of Winnebago passed 
Ordinance No. 2003-CO-54 which gave the County of Winnebago the authority to sell 
Alternative Bonds in an amount not to exceed $1,340,000 for the purpose of capital 
improvements to certain County owned buildings; and, 
 
WHEREAS, on August 14, 2003 the County Board of the County of Winnebago passed 
Ordinance No. 2003 CO 85 which the Board ordained to issue $1,340,000; and,   
 
WHEREAS, on February 23, 2006 the County Board of the County of Winnebago passed 
Ordinance No. 2006-CO-20 which gave the County of Winnebago the authority to sell Alternate 
Bonds in an amount not to exceed $3,500,000 to raise money for the purpose of defraying the 
cost of capital improvements to certain County buildings; and,  
 
WHEREAS, on April 27, 2006 the County Board of the County of Winnebago passed Ordinance 
No. 2006-CO-58 (hereinafter referred to as "Alternate Bond Ordinance") which the Board 
ordained to issue $3,500,000 in Alternate Bonds authorized in 2006-CO-20; and,  
 
WHEREAS, on April 26, 2012 the County Board of the County of Winnebago adopted Ordinance 
No. 2012-CO-031, which provides for the issuance and sale of $3,285,000 General Obligation 
Refunding Bonds, Series 2012C to refund all of the $710,000 Outstanding Bonds of Series 2003D 
and a portion of the $2,800,000 Outstanding Bonds of Series 2012C; and,  
 
WHEREAS, the Alternate Bond Ordinance provides that the principal and interest payments on 
the aforesaid Alternate Bonds shall be made from State Income Tax Dollars (Pledged Revenues), 
which have been pledged towards the payment of the Bonds; and, 
  
WHEREAS, the Alternate Bond Ordinance provides the County shall also levy an annual 2012C 
State Income Tax Alternate Bond Property Tax in an amount sufficient to make the principal 
and interest payments on the outstanding Alternate Bonds as such payments become due for 
each year in which any of the Bonds are outstanding; and,  
 



 

WHEREAS, the County ordained to levy a 2022 payable 2023,  2012C State Income Tax 
Alternate Bond Property Tax sufficient to produce the sum of $275,750 the amount needed to 
make all principal and interest payments on the outstanding Alternate Bonds through 
December 30, 2023; and, 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to the terms of the Alternate Bond Ordinance, it is no longer necessary for 
the County to levy a 2012C State Income Tax Alternate Bond Property Tax for the 2022 payable 
2023 tax year. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the County Board for the County of Winnebago, Illinois 
that the 2012C State Income Tax Alternate Bond Property Tax Levy in the amount of $275,750 
for the tax year 2022 payable 2023 is hereby abated in its entirety.  
 
BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED that this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect immediately 
upon its adoption. 
  
BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized and 
directed to file a certified copy of this tax abatement Ordinance in the office of the Winnebago 
County Clerk.  
 
 
 
 
 
  



 

Respectfully Submitted, 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

 
 
 

AGREE  DISAGREE 

JOHN  BUTITTA, CHAIRMAN 
 

                                                       JOHN  BUTITTA, CHAIRMAN 

JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIRMAN                                           JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIRMAN 

  JEAN CROSBY 
 

                                                                                                      JEAN CROSBY 
 

JOE HOFFMAN   JOE HUFFMAN 

  KEITH MCDONALD 
 

                                                                         KEITH MCDONALD 
 

 
JOHN F. SWEENEY  JOHN F. SWEENEY 

  MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 

                                                                    MICHAEL THOMPSON 
   

 
The above and foregoing Ordinance was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this  day of  2023. 

 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



 

  

 

Resolution Executive Summary 
 
Prepared By:   David J. Rickert - Chief Financial Officer 

Committee:   Finance Committee 

Committee Date:    February 16th, 2023 

Resolution Title: An Ordinance to Abate the 2016A Public Safety Sales Tax Alternative Bond  
   Property Tax Levy for the Year 2022 Payable 2023 

County Code:   Not Applicable 

Board Meeting Date:  February 23rd, 2023 

 

Budget Information:  
 

Was item budgeted?    Yes                                                       Appropriation Amount:  Not Applicable 

If not, explain funding source:   Not Applicable 

ORG/OBJ/Project Code:  Not Applicable Budget Impact:   None  

 
Background Information:   
 
The County has issued a number of alternate bonds which have tax levies filed with the County Clerk. The 
abatement ordinances abate the tax levies filed for the alternate bonds for tax year 2022 payable 2023. 
The abatements must pass on or before tax extensions are done by the County Clerk. 
 
Recommendation:  

Approval of the ordinance abating the 2016A Public Safety Sales Tax Alternate Bond Property Tax Levy 
for the Year 2022 payable 2023. 

 
Contract/ Agreement: Not Applicable  
 
 
Legal Review: Yes, done in previous years. The dollar amount changes each year. 



County Board:  02-23-2022 
 

ORDINANCE OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
Sponsored by:  Butitta, Committee Chairman 
Submitted by:  Finance Committee 

2023 CO 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO ABATE THE 2016A PUBLIC SAFETY SALES TAX  
ALTERNATE BOND PROPERTY TAX LEVY FOR THE YEAR 2022 PAYABLE 2023 
 

WHEREAS, on May 22, 2003 the County Board of the County of Winnebago passed 
Ordinance No. 2003 CO-44 which gave the County of Winnebago the authority to sell 
Alternate Bonds in an amount not to exceed $115,000,000 to raise money for the purpose 
of paying the expenses of acquisition of land, and construction of a new Criminal Justice 
Center; and, 
  
WHEREAS, on April 27, 2006 the County Board of the County of Winnebago passed 
Ordinance No. 2006 CO-56 (hereinafter referred to as "Alternate Bond Ordinance") which 
the Board ordained to issue $44,000,000 in Alternate Bonds; and,  
 
WHEREAS, the Alternate Bond Ordinance provides that the principal and interest payments 
on the aforesaid Alternate Bonds shall be made from Public Safety Sales Tax Dollars (Pledged 
Revenues), which have been pledged towards the payment of the Bonds; and,  
 
WHEREAS, the County Board determined that it was necessary and desirable and in the best 
interests of the inhabitants of the County, in order to obtain net present value interest 
savings on the Series 2005A Bonds and the Series 2006A Bonds, to (i) refund the outstanding 
Series 2005A Bonds maturing on December 30 of each of the years from 2016 through 2024, 
inclusive (the "Refunded Series 2005A Bonds"), and (ii) refund the outstanding Series 2006A 
Bonds maturing on December 30 of each of the years from 2019 through 2024, inclusive (the 
"Refunded Series 2006A Bonds"); and,  
 
WHEREAS, the County Board adopted Ordinance No. 2013-CO-007 on January 24, 2013, 
authorizing the issuance and providing for the sale of up to $45,000,000 of the County's 
General Obligation Alternate Refunding Bonds (Public Safety Sales Tax Alternate Revenue 
Sources), Series 2013A (the "Series 2013A Bonds"). The Series 2013A Bonds were issued on 
February 7, 2013. A portion of the proceeds of the Series 2013A Bonds was deposited into 
escrow, invested in U.S. Treasury Obligations, and was applied to refund and defease the 
Refunded Series 2005A Bonds, which were called for redemption on June 30, 2015, and to 
refund and defease the Refunded Series 2006A Bonds, which were called for redemption on 
December 30, 2015, in each case the earliest possible redemption date; and,  
 



 

WHEREAS, the County Board adopted Ordinance No. 2013-CO-018 which provided for the 
abatement of a portion of the property taxes levied to pay principal and interest on the 
outstanding general obligation alternate bonds (Public Safety Sales Tax Alternate Revenue 
Source) Series 2006A; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the County Board approved Ordinance No. 2016-CO-043 on March 24, 2016 which 
authorized and provided for the issuance and sale of $2,485,000 General Obligation Alternate 
Refunding Bonds, Series 2016A for the purpose of refunding all of the $2,505,000 outstanding 
aggregate principal amount of General Obligation Bonds, Series 2006A; and,  
 
WHEREAS, Section 20 of the Alternate Bond Ordinance provides that the County shall also levy 
an annual 2016A Public Safety Sales Tax Alternate Bond tax in an amount sufficient to make the 
principal and interest on 2016A Bonds due for each year; and,  
 
WHEREAS, in said Section 20, the Ordinance provides that the County shall levy for the 2022 
payable 2023, 2016A Public Safety Sales Tax Alternate Bond Property Tax an amount sufficient 
to produce the sum of $99,400; the amount needed to make all principal and interest payments 
on the outstanding Alternate Bonds through December 30, 2023; and,  
 
WHEREAS, Section 22 of the Alternate Bond Ordinance authorizes the County Board to abate 
each annual 2016A Public Safety Sales Tax Alternate Bond Tax Levy provided there are sufficient 
funds on deposit in the Pledge Revenue Subaccount of the Principal and Interest account to 
fully pay the Alternate Bond Debt Service otherwise payable from such tax levy; and,  
 
WHEREAS, there is presently at least $99,400 in the aforesaid Pledged Revenues Subaccount 
which is sufficient to fully make all principal and interest payments on the aforementioned 
outstanding Alternate Bonds through December 30, 2023; and,  
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to the terms of the Alternate Bond Ordinance, it is no longer necessary for 
the County to levy a 2016A Public Safety Sales Tax Alternate Bond Property Tax for the 2022 tax 
year payable 2023. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the County Board for the County of Winnebago, Illinois 
that the 2016A Public Safety Sales Tax Alternate Bond Property Tax Levy in the amount of 
$99,400 for the 2022 payable 2023 tax year is hereby abated in its entirety.  
 
BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect immediately 
upon its adoption.  
 
BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized and 
directed to file a certified copy of this tax abatement Ordinance in the office of the Winnebago 
County Clerk. 
 
 
 
 



 

Respectfully Submitted, 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

 
 
 

AGREE  DISAGREE 

JOHN  BUTITTA, CHAIRMAN 
 

                                                       JOHN  BUTITTA, CHAIRMAN 

JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIRMAN                                           JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIRMAN 

  JEAN CROSBY 
 

                                                                                                      JEAN CROSBY 
 

JOE HOFFMAN   JOE HUFFMAN 

  KEITH MCDONALD 
 

                                                                         KEITH MCDONALD 
 

 
JOHN F. SWEENEY  JOHN F. SWEENEY 

  MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 

                                                                    MICHAEL THOMPSON 
   

 
The above and foregoing Ordinance was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this  day of  2023. 

 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 

 



 

  

 

Resolution Executive Summary 
 
Prepared By:   David J. Rickert - Chief Financial Officer 

Committee:   Finance Committee 

Committee Date:    February 16th, 2023 

Resolution Title: An Ordinance to Abate The 2016D Public Safety Sales Tax Alternative Bond  
   Property Tax Levy for the Year 2022 Payable 2023.  

County Code:   Not Applicable 

Board Meeting Date:  February 23rd, 2023 

Budget Information:  
 

Was item budgeted?    Yes                                                       Appropriation Amount:  Not Applicable 

If not, explain funding source:   Not Applicable 

ORG/OBJ/Project Code:  Not Applicable Budget Impact:   None  
 
Background Information:   
 
The County has issued a number of alternate bonds which have tax levies filed with the County Clerk. The 
abatement ordinances abate the tax levies filed for the alternate bonds for tax year 2022 payable 2023. 
The abatements must pass on or before tax extensions are done by the County Clerk. 
 
Recommendation:  

Approval of the ordinance abating the 2016D Public Safety Sales Tax Alternate Bond Property Tax Levy 
for the Year 2022 payable 2023. 

 
Contract/ Agreement: Not Applicable  
 
 
Legal Review: Yes, done in previous years. The dollar amount changes each year. 



County Board:  02-23-2023 
 

ORDINANCE OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
Sponsored by:  John Butitta, Committee Chairman 
Submitted by:  Finance Committee 

2023 CO 
  

AN ORDINANCE TO ABATE THE 2016D PUBLIC SAFETY SALES TAX  
ALTERNATE BOND PROPERTY TAX LEVY FOR THE YEAR 2022 PAYABLE 2023 

 

WHEREAS, on May 22, 2003 the County Board of the County of Winnebago passed 
Ordinance No. 2003-CO-44 which gave the County of Winnebago the authority to sell 
Alternate Bonds in an amount not to exceed $115,000,000 to raise money for the purpose 
of paying the expenses of acquisition of land, and construction of a new Criminal Justice 
Center; and,  
 

WHEREAS, on June 9, 2005 the County Board of the County of Winnebago adopted 
Ordinance No. 2005-CO-51 (the Series 2005A Bonds) which the Board ordained to issue 
$40,000,000 in Alternate Bonds; and,  
 

WHEREAS, on April 13, 2006 the County Board of the County of Winnebago adopted 
Ordinance No. 2006-CO-56 (the Series 2006A Bonds) which the Board ordained to issue 
$44,000,000 in Alternate Bonds; and,  
 

WHEREAS, the Alternate Bond Ordinances provides that the principal and interest payments 
on the aforesaid Alternate Bonds shall be made from Public Safety Sales Tax Dollars (Pledged 
Revenues), which have been pledged towards the payment of the Bonds; and,  
 

WHEREAS, the County Board determined that it was necessary and desirable and in the best 
interests of the inhabitants of the County, in order to obtain net present value interest 
savings on the Series 2005A Bonds and the Series 2006B Bonds, to (i) refund the outstanding 
Series 2005A Bonds maturing on December 30 of each of the years from 2016 through 2024, 
inclusive (the "Refunded Series 2005A Bonds"), and (ii) refund the outstanding Series 2006A 
Bonds maturing on December 30 of each of the years from 2019 through 2024, inclusive (the 
"Refunded Series 2006A Bonds"); and, 
 
WHEREAS, the County Board adopted Ordinance No. 2013-CO-007 on January 24, 2013, 
authorizing the issuance and providing for the sale of up to $45,000,000 of the County's General 
Obligation Alternate Refunding Bonds (Public Safety Sales Tax Alternate Revenue Sources), Series 
2013A (the "Series 2013A Bonds"). The Series 2013A Bonds were issued on February 7, 2013. A 
portion of the proceeds of the Series 2013A Bonds was deposited into escrow, invested in U.S. 
Treasury Obligations, and was applied to refund and defease the Refunded Series 2005A Bonds, 
which were called for redemption on June 30, 2015, and to refund and defease the Refunded 



 

Series 2006A Bonds, which were called for redemption on December 30, 2015, in each case the 
earliest possible redemption date; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the County Board determined that it was necessary to advance refund a portion  
of the outstanding Series 2013A Bonds (the Refunded Bonds) and to pay the Refunded Bonds on 
the stated date of maturity for each of the Refunded Bonds in order to restructure the debt 
service on the Refunded Bonds; and, 
  
WHEREAS, the County issued Taxable General Obligation Alternate Revenue Bonds, Series 2016D 
in the amount of $5,420,000 for the purpose of advance refunding and restructuring a portion of 
the outstanding general obligation Alternate Refunding Bonds, Series 2013A; and, 
  
WHEREAS, Section 20 of the Alternate Bond Ordinance provides the County shall also levy an 
annual 2016D Public Safety Sales Tax Alternate Bond Property Tax in the amount sufficient to 
make the principal and interest payments on the outstanding Alternate Bonds as such payments 
become due, for each year in which any of the Bonds are outstanding; and,  
 
WHEREAS, the 2016D Alternate Bond Tax Levy provides that the County shall levy a 2022 payable 
2023, 2016D Public Safety Sales Tax Alternate Bond Property Tax sufficient to produce the sum 
of $100,800, the amount needed to make all principal and interest payments on the outstanding 
Alternate Bonds through December 30, 2023; and, 
 
WHEREAS, Section 22 of the Alternate Bond Ordinance authorizes the County Board to abate 
each annual 2016D Public Safety Sales Tax Alternate Bond Tax Levy provided there are sufficient 
funds on deposit in the Pledge Revenues Subaccount of the Principal and Interest Account of the 
2016D Public Safety Sales Tax Alternate Bond Fund to fully pay the Alternate Bond Debt Service 
otherwise payable from each such Tax Levy; and, 
 
WHEREAS, there is presently at least $100,800 in the aforesaid Pledged Revenues Subaccount, 
which is sufficient to fully make all principal and interest payments on the aforementioned 
outstanding Alternate Bonds through December 30, 2023; and,  
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to the terms of the Alternate Bond Ordinance, it is no longer necessary for 
the County to levy a 2016D Public Safety Sales Tax Alternate Bond Property Tax for the 2022 
payable 2023 tax year.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the County Board for the County of Winnebago, Illinois 
that the 2022 payable 2023, 2016D Public Safety Sales Tax Alternate Bond Property Tax Levy in 
the amount of $100,800 is hereby abated in its entirety.  
 
BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect immediately upon 
its adoption.  
 
BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized and directed 
to file a certified copy of this tax abatement Ordinance in the office of the Winnebago County 
Clerk. 
 
          
 



 

Respectfully Submitted, 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

 
 
 

AGREE  DISAGREE 

JOHN  BUTITTA, CHAIRMAN 
 

                                                       JOHN  BUTITTA, CHAIRMAN 

JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIRMAN                                           JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIRMAN 

  JEAN CROSBY 
 

                                                                                                      JEAN CROSBY 
 

JOE HOFFMAN   JOE HUFFMAN 

  KEITH MCDONALD 
 

                                                                         KEITH MCDONALD 
 

 
JOHN F. SWEENEY  JOHN F. SWEENEY 

  MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 

                                                                    MICHAEL THOMPSON 
   

 
The above and foregoing Ordinance was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this  day of  2023. 

 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 

 
 



 

  

 

Resolution Executive Summary 
 
Prepared By:   David J. Rickert - Chief Financial Officer 

Committee:   Finance Committee 

Committee Date:    February 16th, 2023 

Resolution Title: An Ordinance to Abate The 2016E Public Safety Sales Tax Alternative Bond  
   Property Tax Levy for the Year 2022 Payable 2023.  

County Code:   Not Applicable 

Board Meeting Date:  February 23rd, 2023 

 

Budget Information:  
 

Was item budgeted?    Yes                                                       Appropriation Amount:  Not Applicable 

If not, explain funding source:   Not Applicable 

ORG/OBJ/Project Code:  Not Applicable Budget Impact:   None  
 
 
Background Information:   
 
The County has issued a number of alternate bonds which have tax levies filed with the County Clerk. The 
abatement ordinances abate the tax levies filed for the alternate bonds for tax year 2022 payable 2023. 
The abatements must pass on or before tax extensions are done by the County Clerk. 
 
Recommendation:  

Approval of the ordinance abating the 2016E Public Safety Sales Tax Alternate Bond Property Tax Levy 
for the Year 2022 payable 2023. 

 
Contract/ Agreement: Not Applicable  
 
 
Legal Review: Yes, done in previous years. The dollar amount changes each year. 
 
 



County Board:  02-23-2023 
 

ORDINANCE OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
Sponsored by:  John Butitta, Committee Chairman 
Submitted by:  Finance Committee 

2023 CO 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO ABATE THE 2016E PUBLIC SAFETY SALES TAX  
ALTERNATIVE BOND PROPERTY TAX LEVY FOR THE YEAR 2022 PAYABLE 2023 

 
WHEREAS, on May 22, 2003 the County Board of the County of Winnebago passed Ordinance 
No. 2003 CO-44 which gave the County of Winnebago the authority to sell Alternate Bonds in 
an amount not to exceed $115,000,000 to raise money for the purpose of paying the expenses 
of acquisition of land, and construction of a new Criminal Justice Center; and,  
 
WHEREAS, on September 4, 2003 the County Board of the County of Winnebago passed 
Ordinance No. 2003-CO-l 06 (hereinafter referred to as "Alternate Bond Ordinance") which the 
Board ordained to issue $25,000,000 in Alternate Bonds; and,  
 
WHEREAS, the County Board determined that it was necessary and in the best interest of the 
County to obtain net present value interest savings and to restructure the indebtedness 
represented by the Series 2003E Bonds and to refund the portion of the Bonds of the 
outstanding Series 2003E Bonds maturing in each of the years 2020 to 2022 inclusive; and,  
 
WHEREAS, the County Board adopted Ordinance No. 2006-CO-143 on November 21, 2006 
authorizing the issuance, and providing for the sale of, the County's General Obligation 
Refinancing Alternate Bonds (Public Safety Sales Tax Alternate Revenue Source) Series 2006E in 
the amount of $18,765,000; and,  
 
WHEREAS, the County Board approved Ordinance No. 2016-CO-l 19 on November 10, 2016 
authorizing and providing for the issuance and sale of $18,515,000 General Obligation Alternate 
Refunding Bonds, Series 2016E of the County of Winnebago, Illinois for the purpose of currently 
refunding and restructuring a portion of the outstanding General Obligation Alternate 
Refunding Bonds 2016E; and,  
 
WHEREAS, Section 20 of the Alternate Bond Ordinance provides the County shall also levy an 
annual 2016E Public Safety Sales Tax Alternate Bond Property Tax in an amount sufficient to 
make the principal and interest payments on the outstanding Alternate Bonds as such 
payments become due, for each year in which any of the Bonds are outstanding; and,  
 
 
 
 



 

WHEREAS, in said Section 20, the County ordained to levy a 2022 payable 2023, 2016E Public 
Safety Sales Tax Alternate Bond Property Tax sufficient to produce the sum of$656,450 the 
amount needed to make all principal and interest payments on the outstanding Alternate 
Bonds through December 30, 2023; and,  
 
WHEREAS, Section 22 of the Alternate Bond Ordinance authorizes the County Board to abate 
each annual 2016E Public Safety Sales Tax Alternate Bond Tax Levy provided there are sufficient 
funds on deposit in the Pledge Revenues Subaccount of the Principal and Interest Account of 
the 2016E Public Safety Sales Tax Alternate Bond Fund to fully pay the Alternate Bond Debt 
Service otherwise payable from each such Tax Levy; and,  
 
WHEREAS, there is presently at least $656,450 in the aforesaid Pledged Revenues Subaccount, 
which is sufficient to fully make all principal and interest payments on the aforementioned 
outstanding Alternate Bonds through December 30, 2023; and,  
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to the terms of the Alternate Bond Ordinance, it is no longer necessary for 
the County to levy a 2016E Public Safety Sales Tax Alternate Bond Property Tax for the 2022 
payable 2023 tax year.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the County Board for the County of Winnebago, Illinois 
that the 2016E Public Safety Sales Tax Alternate Bond Property Tax Levy in the amount of 
$656,450 for the 2022 payable 2023 tax year is hereby abated in its entirety.  
 
BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect immediately 
upon its adoption.  
 
BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized and 
directed to file a certified copy of this tax abatement Ordinance in the office of the Winnebago 
County Clerk. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
          
 



 

Respectfully Submitted, 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

 
 
 

AGREE  DISAGREE 

JOHN  BUTITTA, CHAIRMAN 
 

                                                       JOHN  BUTITTA, CHAIRMAN 

JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIRMAN                                           JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIRMAN 

  JEAN CROSBY 
 

                                                                                                      JEAN CROSBY 
 

JOE HOFFMAN   JOE HUFFMAN 

  KEITH MCDONALD 
 

                                                                         KEITH MCDONALD 
 

 
JOHN F. SWEENEY  JOHN F. SWEENEY 

  MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 

                                                                    MICHAEL THOMPSON 
   

 
The above and foregoing Ordinance was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this  day of  2023. 

 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 

 
 
 



 

  

 

Resolution Executive Summary 
 
Prepared By:   David J. Rickert - Chief Financial Officer 

Committee:   Finance Committee 

Committee Date:    February 16th, 2023 

Resolution Title: An Ordinance to Abate The 2017C Tort Property Tax and Quarter Cent Sales Tax  
   Alternative Bond Property Tax Levy for the Year 2022 Payable 2023.  

County Code:   Not Applicable 

Board Meeting Date:  February 23rd, 2023 

Budget Information:  
 

Was item budgeted?    Yes                                                       Appropriation Amount:  Not Applicable 

If not, explain funding source:   Not Applicable 

ORG/OBJ/Project Code:  Not Applicable Budget Impact:   None  
 
Background Information:   
 
The County has issued a number of alternate bonds which have tax levies filed with the County Clerk. The 
abatement ordinances abate the tax levies filed for the alternate bonds for tax year 2022 payable 2023. 
The abatements must pass on or before tax extensions are done by the County Clerk. 
 
Recommendation:  

Approval of the ordinance abating the 2017C Public Safety Sales Tax Alternate Bond Property Tax Levy 
for the Year 2022 payable 2023. 

 
Contract/ Agreement: Not Applicable  
 
 
Legal Review: Yes, done in previous years. The dollar amount changes each year. 



County Board:  02-23-2023 
 

ORDINANCE OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
Sponsored by:  John Butitta, Committee Chairman 
Submitted by:  Finance Committee 

2023 CO 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO ABATE THE 2017C TORT PROPERTY TAX AND 
QUARTER CENT SALES TAX ALTERNATIVE BOND PROPERTY TAX LEVY  

FOR THE YEAR 2022 PAYABLE 2023 
 

WHEREAS, on December 22, 2009 the County Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 
passed Ordinance No. 2009-CO-87 (hereinafter referred to as "Alternate Bond Ordnance") 
which gave the County the authority to sell Alternate Bonds for the purpose of paying expenses 
associated with certain tort obligations in excess of insurance coverage; and, 
  
WHEREAS, on March 12, 2010 the County of Winnebago, pursuant to the Alternate Bond 
Ordinance, sold Alternate Bonds having an aggregate face value of $13,000,000; and, 
  
WHEREAS, on April 27, 2017, the County Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois approved 
Ordinance No. 2017-CO-046 which authorizes and provides for the issuance and sale of up to 
$10,250,000 General Obligation Alternate Refunding Bonds (Tort Fund Property Tax Alternate 
Revenue Sources) Series 2017C of the County of Winnebago, Illinois for the purpose of advance 
refunding a portion of the Outstanding Aggregate Principal Amount of General Obligation 
Alternate Bonds (Tort Fund Property Tax Alternate Revenue Source), Series 2010A; and,  
 
WHEREAS, the Alternate Bond Ordinance provides the principal and interest payments  
on the aforementioned Alternate Bonds shall be made from the Tort Fund Property Tax; and, 
  
WHEREAS, Section 20 of the Alternate Bond Ordinance provides the County shall also levy an 
annual Property Tax in an amount sufficient to make the principal and interest payments on the 
outstanding Alternate Bonds as such payments become due, for each year in which any of the 
aforementioned Bonds are outstanding; and, 
  
WHEREAS, in Section 20 of the Alternate Bond Ordinance the County ordained to levy a 2022 
payable 2023 Property Tax sufficient to produce the sum of $971,750 (the amount needed to 
make all principal and interest payments on the outstanding Alternate Bonds through 
December 30, 2023); and, 
  
 
 
 



 

WHEREAS, Section 22 of the Alternate Bond Ordinance provides, that the County Treasurer 
shall deposit Pledged Revenues into the Pledged Revenues subaccount of the Bond Fund in an 
amount necessary to provide for the payment of interest and principal coming due on the 
Series 2017C Bonds in the following year and upon the deposit of such monies for such year, 
the County may abate the Alternate Bond Property Tax Levy for that year; and, 
 
WHEREAS, there is at least $971,750 in the aforesaid Pledged Revenues Subaccount to fully 
make all principal and interest payments on the aforementioned outstanding Alternate Bond 
Fund through December 30, 2023; and, 
  
WHEREAS, pursuant to the terms of the Alternate Bond Ordinance it is no longer necessary for 
the County to levy a 2017C Alternate Bond Property Tax for the 2022 payable 2023 tax year; 
and, 
  
WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the people of the County of Winnebago, Illinois  
that the 2017C Alternate Bond Property Tax Levy be abated in the total amount of $971,750.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois, 
that the 2017C Alternate Bond Property Tax Levy for the 2022 payable 2023 tax year in the 
amount of $971,750 is hereby abated in its entirety.  
 
BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect immediately 
upon its adoption.  
 
BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized and 
directed to file a certified copy of this tax abatement Ordinance in the office of the Winnebago 
County Clerk. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Respectfully Submitted, 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

 
 
 

AGREE  DISAGREE 

JOHN  BUTITTA, CHAIRMAN 
 

                                                       JOHN  BUTITTA, CHAIRMAN 

JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIRMAN                                           JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIRMAN 

  JEAN CROSBY 
 

                                                                                                      JEAN CROSBY 
 

JOE HOFFMAN   JOE HUFFMAN 

  KEITH MCDONALD 
 

                                                                         KEITH MCDONALD 
 

 
JOHN F. SWEENEY  JOHN F. SWEENEY 

  MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 

                                                                    MICHAEL THOMPSON 
   

 
The above and foregoing Ordinance was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this  day of  2023. 

 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 

 



 

  

 

Resolution Executive Summary 
 
Prepared By:   David J. Rickert - Chief Financial Officer 

Committee:   Finance Committee 

Committee Date:    February 16th, 2023 

Resolution Title: An Ordinance abating the tax hereto levied for the year 2022 payable 2023 to  
   pay the principle of and interest on Taxable General Obligation Bonds   
   (Alternative Revenue Source) Series 2018 of Winnebago County, Illinois.  

County Code:   Not Applicable 

Board Meeting Date:  February 23rd, 2023 

Budget Information:  
 

Was item budgeted?    Yes                                                       Appropriation Amount:  Not Applicable 

If not, explain funding source:   Not Applicable 

ORG/OBJ/Project Code:  Not Applicable Budget Impact:   None  
 
Background Information:   
 
The County has issued a number of alternate bonds which have tax levies filed with the County Clerk. The 
abatement ordinances abate the tax levies filed for the alternate bonds for tax year 2022 payable 2023. 
The abatements must pass on or before tax extensions are done by the County Clerk. 
 
Recommendation:  

Approval of the ordinance abating the 2018 General Obligation Bonds Property Tax Levy for the Year 
2022 payable 2023. 

 
Contract/ Agreement: Not Applicable  
 
 
Legal Review: Yes, done in previous years. The dollar amount changes each year. 



County Board:  02-23-2023 
 

ORDINANCE OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
Sponsored by:  John Butitta, Committee Chairman 
Submitted by:  Finance Committee 

2023 CO 
 

AN ORDINANCE ABATING THE TAX HERETO LEVIED FOR THE YEAR 2022 
PAYABLE 2023 TO PAY THE PRINCIPLE OF AND INTEREST ON TAXABLE GENERAL  

OBLIGATION BONDS (ALTERNATIVE REVENUE SOURCE)  
SERIES 2018 OF WINNEBAGO COUNTY, ILLINOIS.  

 
 
WHEREAS, the County Board of Winnebago County, Illinois, by an ordinance adopted on the 
25th day of October 2018, (as amended and supplemented, the "Bond Ordinance"), did provide 
the (i) the issue of Taxable General Obligation Bonds (Alternate Revenue Source), Series 2018 
(the "Bonds"), (ii) the pledge of taxes levied upon all taxable property in the County for IMRF 
purposes (the "Pledged Revenues") to the payment of principal of and interest on the Bonds 
and (iii) the levy of a direct annual tax sufficient to pay such principal of and interest ( "Pledged 
Taxes") if the Pledged Revenues are insufficient to make such payment; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Board has levied taxes for IMRF purposes for levy year 2022 payable 2023 (the 
"IMRF Levy") and filed the same with the County Clerk of the County (the "County Clerk"); and  
 
WHEREAS, the County has received notice from the County Clerk that the tax rate for the IMRF 
Levy for levy year 2022 payable 2023 does not exceed the County's "limiting rate" for levy year 
2022 payable 2023 calculated by the County Clerk in accordance with the provisions of the 
Property Tax Extension Limitation Law, as amended; and  
 
WHEREAS, the IMRF Levy for levy year 2022 payable 2023 is not less than the amount of 
principal of and interest on the Bonds otherwise payable from Pledged Taxes levied for the year 
2022 payable 2023; and  
 
WHEREAS, it is necessary and in the best interests of the County that the Pledged Taxes levied 
for the year 2022 payable 2023 to pay the principal of and interest on the Bonds be abated; 
  
NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois, 
as follows: Section J. Abatement of Tax. The Pledged Taxes levied for the year 2022 payable 
2023 in the Bond Ordinance are hereby abated in their entirety in the amount of $2,064,536. 
  
BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, upon the adoption of this Ordinance, a certified copy hereof shall 
be filed with the County Clerk, and it shall be the duty of the County Clerk to abate the Pledged 
Taxes levied for the year 2022 payable 2023 in accordance with the provisions hereof. 

   



 

 
Respectfully Submitted, 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

 
 
 

AGREE  DISAGREE 

JOHN  BUTITTA, CHAIRMAN 
 

                                                       JOHN  BUTITTA, CHAIRMAN 

JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIRMAN                                           JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIRMAN 

  JEAN CROSBY 
 

                                                                                                      JEAN CROSBY 
 

JOE HOFFMAN   JOE HUFFMAN 

  KEITH MCDONALD 
 

                                                                         KEITH MCDONALD 
 

 
JOHN F. SWEENEY  JOHN F. SWEENEY 

  MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 

                                                                    MICHAEL THOMPSON 
   

 
The above and foregoing Ordinance was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this  day of  2023. 

 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 

 
 



 

  

 

Resolution Executive Summary 
 
Prepared By:   David J. Rickert - Chief Financial Officer 

Committee:   Finance Committee 

Committee Date:    February 16th, 2023 

Resolution Title: An Ordinance to Abate the 2020A Alternative Revenue Bond Property Tax Levy  
   for the Year 2022 Payable 2023.  

County Code:   Not Applicable 

Board Meeting Date:  February 23rd, 2023 

Budget Information:  
 

Was item budgeted?    Yes                                                       Appropriation Amount:  Not Applicable 

If not, explain funding source:   Not Applicable 

ORG/OBJ/Project Code:  Not Applicable Budget Impact:   None  
 
Background Information:   
 
The County has issued a number of alternate bonds which have tax levies filed with the County Clerk. The 
abatement ordinances abate the tax levies filed for the alternate bonds for tax year 2022 payable 2023. 
The abatements must pass on or before tax extensions are done by the County Clerk. 
 
Recommendation:  

Approval of the ordinance abating the 2020A Public Safety Sales Tax Alternate Bond Property Tax Levy 
for the Year 2022 payable 2023. 

 
Contract/ Agreement: Not Applicable  
 
 
Legal Review: Yes, done in previous years. The dollar amount changes each year. 



County Board:  02-23-2023 
 

ORDINANCE OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
Sponsored by:  John Butitta, Committee Chairman 
Submitted by:  Finance Committee 

2023 CO 

 
AN ORDINANCE TO ABATE THE 2020A ALTERNATIVE REVENUE BOND  

PROPERTY TAX LEVY FOR THE YEAR 2022 PAYABLE 2023 
 

 
WHEREAS, on January 23, 2020 the County Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois adopted 
Ordinance No. 2020-CO-007 (the Authorizing Ordinance) authorizing the issuance of General 
Obligation Bonds (Matching Tax and Motor Fuel Tax Alternate Revenue Source) Series 2020A as 
provided in the Act, in an amount not to exceed $4,000,000; and,  
 
WHEREAS, on May 14, 2020 the County Board of the County of Winnebago adopted Ordinance 
No. 2020-CO-039 (hereinafter referred to as "Alternate Bond Ordinance") which authorized and 
provided for the issuance of not to exceed $4,000,000; and,  
 
WHEREAS, the Alternate Bond Ordinance gave the County the authority to sell Alternate Bonds 
for the purpose of constructing, maintaining and improving County highways, roads and 
bridges; and,  
 
WHEREAS, the Alternate Bond Ordinance provides the principal and interest payments on the 
aforementioned Alternate Bonds shall be made from Matching Tax monies and Motor Fuel 
taxes which have been pledged towards the payment of the Bonds; and,  
 
WHEREAS, the Alternate Bond Ordinance also provides that the County shall levy and Alternate 
Bond Property Tax each year until the Bonds are fully paid, in an amount sufficient to fully make 
principal and interest payments on the Alternate Bonds as such payments come are; and,  
WHEREAS, on June 3, 2020 the County of Winnebago sold Alternate Bonds having a face value 
of $2,590,000; and,  
 
WHEREAS, the County of Winnebago issued a Direction for Abatement of Taxes to abate from 
the taxes levied in the Bond Ordinance that amount representing the reduction to the County 
resulting from the sale of the Bonds in the amount and bearing interest at the rates as 
hereinabove referred to, the amount of such abatement and the remainder of such taxes so 
levied which is to be extended for collection; and,  
 
 



 

WHEREAS, Section 13 of the Alternate Bond Ordinance provides that when funds are available 
and on deposit in the Bond Fund in an amount necessary to provide for the payment of interest 
and principal coming due on the Series 2020A Bonds in the following year and upon the deposit 
of said monies for said year, the County may abate the Alternate Bond Property Tax Levy for 
that year; and, 
 
WHEREAS, there is at least $399,500 in the aforesaid Bond Fund to fully make all principal and 
interest payments on the aforementioned outstanding Alternate Bond Fund through December 
30, 2023; and,  
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to the terms of the Alternate Bond Ordinance it is no longer necessary for 
the County to levy a 2020A Alternate Bond Property Tax for the 2022 payable 2023 tax year; 
and,  
 
WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the people of the County of Winnebago, Illinois that the 
2020A Alternate Bond Property Tax Levy be abated in the total amount of $399,500.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois, 
that the 2020A Alternate Bond Property Tax Levy for the 2021 tax year in the amount of 
$399,500 is hereby abated in its entirety.  
 
BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect immediately 
upon its adoption.  
 
BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized and 
directed to file a certified copy of this Tax Abatement Ordinance in the office of the Winnebago 
County Clerk. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



 

Respectfully Submitted, 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

 
 
 

AGREE  DISAGREE 

JOHN  BUTITTA, CHAIRMAN 
 

                                                       JOHN  BUTITTA, CHAIRMAN 

JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIRMAN                                           JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIRMAN 

  JEAN CROSBY 
 

                                                                                                      JEAN CROSBY 
 

JOE HOFFMAN   JOE HUFFMAN 

  KEITH MCDONALD 
 

                                                                         KEITH MCDONALD 
 

 
JOHN F. SWEENEY  JOHN F. SWEENEY 

  MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 

                                                                    MICHAEL THOMPSON 
   

 
The above and foregoing Ordinance was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this  day of  2023. 

 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 

 



 

  

 

Resolution Executive Summary 
 
Prepared By:   David J. Rickert - Chief Financial Officer 

Committee:   Finance Committee 

Committee Date:    February 16th, 2023 

Resolution Title: An Ordinance to Abate the 2020B Alternative Revenue Bond Property Tax Levy  
   for the Year 2022 Payable 2023.  

County Code:   Not Applicable 

Board Meeting Date:  February 23rd, 2023 

Budget Information:  
 

Was item budgeted?    Yes                                                       Appropriation Amount:  Not Applicable 

If not, explain funding source:   Not Applicable 

ORG/OBJ/Project Code:  Not Applicable Budget Impact:   None  
 
Background Information:   
 
The County has issued a number of alternate bonds which have tax levies filed with the County Clerk. The 
abatement ordinances abate the tax levies filed for the alternate bonds for tax year 2022 payable 2023. 
The abatements must pass on or before tax extensions are done by the County Clerk. 
 
Recommendation:  

Approval of the ordinance abating the 2020B Public Safety Sales Tax Alternate Bond Property Tax Levy 
for the Year 2022 payable 2023. 

 
Contract/ Agreement: Not Applicable  
 
 
Legal Review: Yes, done in previous years. The dollar amount changes each year. 



County Board:  02-23-2023 
 

ORDINANCE OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
Sponsored by:  John Butitta, Committee Chairman 
Submitted by:  Finance Committee 

2023 CO 

 
AN ORDINANCE TO ABATE THE 2020B ALTERNATIVE REVENUE BOND  

PROPERTY TAX LEVY FOR THE YEAR 2022 PAYABLE 2023 
 

 
WHEREAS, on July 22, 2010 the County Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois passed 
Ordinance No. 2010-CO-59 (hereinafter referred to as "Alternate Bond Ordinance") which gave 
the County the authority to sell Alternate Bonds for the purpose of buying real property and 
paying the expenses associated with certain renovation/remodeling of the building; and, 
  
WHEREAS, on September 16, 2010 the County of Winnebago, pursuant to the Alternate  
Bond Ordinance, sold Alternate Bonds having an aggregate face value of $4,000,000; and,  
 
WHEREAS, the Alternate Bond Ordinance provides the principal and interest payments on the 
aforementioned Alternate Bonds shall be made from lease revenues from the Health 
Department and the Quarter Cent Sales Tax; and,  
 
WHEREAS, on May 14, 2020 the County Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois approved 
Ordinance 2020-CO-040 which authorizes the issuance of not to exceed $2,600,000 General 
Obligation Refunding Bonds (Alternate Revenue Source), Series 2020B of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois, for the purpose of refunding certain outstanding Alternate Bonds of said 
County entitled Series 2010C Bonds; and,  
 
WHEREAS, Section 11 of the 2020B Alternate Bond Ordinance provides the County shall also 
levy an annual Property Tax in an amount sufficient to make the principal and interest 
payments on the outstanding Alternate Bonds as such payments become due, for each year in 
which any of the aforementioned Bonds are outstanding; and,  
 
WHEREAS, on June 3, 2020 the County of Winnebago sold Alternate Bonds having a face value 
of $2,020,000, and,  
 
 
 
 



 

WHEREAS, the County of Winnebago issued a Certificate of Reduction of Taxes heretofore 
levied for the payment of Bonds on June 3, 2020 to abate the taxes levied in the Bond 
Ordinance that amount representing the reduction to the County resulting from the sale of the 
Bonds in the amount and bearing interest at the rates as herein above referred to, the amount 
of such abatement and the remainder of such taxes so levied which is to be extended for 
collection; and, of such abatement and the remainder of such taxes so levied which is to be 
extended for collection; and,  
 
WHEREAS, Section 13 of the Alternate Bond Ordinance provides, that when funds are available 
and on deposit in the Bond Fund in an amount necessary to provide for the payment of interest 
and principal coming due on the Series 2020B Bonds in the following year and upon the deposit 
of said monies for said year, the County may abate the Alternate Bond Property Tax Levy for 
that year; and, 
 
WHEREAS, there is at least $255,500 in the aforesaid Bond Account to fully make all principal 
and interest payments on the aforementioned outstanding Alternate Bond Fund through 
December 30, 2023; and,  
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to the terms of the Alternate Bond Ordinance it is no longer necessary for 
the County to levy a 2020B Alternate Bond Property Tax for the 2022 payable 2023 tax year; 
and,  
 
WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the people of the County of Winnebago, Illinois that the 
2020B Alternate Bond Property Tax Levy be abated in the total amount of $255,500.  
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois, 
that the 2020B Alternate Bond Property Tax Levy for the 2022 payable 2023 tax year in the 
amount of $255,500 is hereby abated in its entirety.  
 
BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect immediately 
upon its adoption.  
 
BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized and 
directed to file a certified copy of this tax abatement Ordinance in the office of the  
Winnebago County Clerk.  
 

 
  



 

Respectfully Submitted, 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

 
 
 

AGREE  DISAGREE 

JOHN  BUTITTA, CHAIRMAN 
 

                                                       JOHN  BUTITTA, CHAIRMAN 

JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIRMAN                                           JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIRMAN 

  JEAN CROSBY 
 

                                                                                                      JEAN CROSBY 
 

JOE HOFFMAN   JOE HUFFMAN 

  KEITH MCDONALD 
 

                                                                         KEITH MCDONALD 
 

 
JOHN F. SWEENEY 

 

JOHN F. SWEENEY 

  MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 

                                                                    MICHAEL THOMPSON 
   

 
The above and foregoing Ordinance was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this  day of  2023. 

 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 

 



 

  

 

Resolution Executive Summary 
 
Prepared By:   David J. Rickert - Chief Financial Officer 

Committee:   Finance Committee 

Committee Date:    February 16th, 2023 

Resolution Title: An Ordinance to abate the General Obligation Refunding Bonds (Alternate  
   Revenue Source), Series 2021A Bond Property Tax Levy for the Year 2022  
   Payable 2023.  

County Code:   Not Applicable 

Board Meeting Date:  February 23rd, 2023 

Budget Information:  
 

Was item budgeted?    Yes                                                       Appropriation Amount:  Not Applicable 

If not, explain funding source:   Not Applicable 

ORG/OBJ/Project Code:  Not Applicable Budget Impact:   None  
 
Background Information:   
 
The County has issued a number of alternate bonds which have tax levies filed with the County Clerk. The 
abatement ordinances abate the tax levies filed for the alternate bonds for tax year 2022 payable 2023. 
The abatements must pass on or before tax extensions are done by the County Clerk. 
 
Recommendation:  

Approval of the ordinance abating the 2021A General Obligation Refunding Bonds (Alternative Revenue 
Source) Tax Levy for the Year 2022 payable 2023. 

 
Contract/ Agreement: Not Applicable  
 
 
Legal Review: Yes conducted by the states attorney. 



County Board:  02-23-2023 
 

ORDINANCE OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
Sponsored by:  John Butitta, Committee Chairman 
Submitted by:  Finance Committee 

2023 CO 

 
AN ORDINANCE TO ABATE THE GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING BONDS 

(ALTERNATE REVENUE SOURCE), SERIES 2021A BOND  
PROPERTY TAX LEVY FOR THE YEAR 2022 PAYABLE 2023 

 
 
WHEREAS, the County had issued General Obligation Bonds (Alternate Revenue Source), Series 
2012F (the “Prior Bonds”); and 
 
WHEREAS, the Prior Bonds were issued to pay the costs of constructing water system and 
associated capital improvements within the I-39/Baxter Road Service Area (the “Area”); and 
 
WHEREAS, the Prior Bonds were refinanced and retired on 25 March 2021.   
 
WHEREAS, $3,485,000 General Obligation Refunding Bonds (Alternate Revenue Source), 
Series 2021A, of The County of Winnebago, Illinois, for the purpose of refunding certain 
outstanding alternate bonds of said County, the pledge of certain revenues to the payment of 
principal and interest on said bonds and the levy of a direct annual tax sufficient to pay such 
principal and interest if the pledged revenues are insufficient to make such payment. 
 
WHEREAS, the Board has levied taxes for the General Obligation Refunding Bonds (Alternate 
Revenue Source), Series 2021A and filed the same with the County Clerk of the County (the 
"County Clerk"); and  
 
WHEREAS, the County has received notice from the County Clerk that the tax rate for the 
General Obligation Refunding Bonds (Alternate Revenue Source), Series 2021A Bonds for levy 
year 2022 payable 2023 calculated by the County Clerk in accordance with the provisions of the 
Property Tax Extension Limitation Law, as amended; and  
 
WHEREAS, the General Obligation Refunding Bonds (Alternate Revenue Source), Series 2021A 
Bond  Levy for levy year 2022 payable 2023 is not less than the amount of principal of and 
interest on the Bonds otherwise payable from Pledged Taxes levied for the year 2022 payable 
2023; and  
 
WHEREAS, it is necessary and in the best interests of the County that the Pledged Taxes levied 
for the year 2022 payable 2023 to pay the principal of and interest on the Bonds be abated; 



 

  
WHEREAS, there is at least $397,450 in the aforesaid Bond Fund to fully make all principal and 
interest payments on the aforementioned outstanding Alternate Bond Fund through December 
30, 2023; and,  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois, 
as follows: In accordance with Section 11. Abatement of Tax. The Pledged Taxes levied for the 
year 2022 payable 2023 for the General Obligation Refunding Bonds (alternate revenue source), 
series 2021A Bond are hereby abated in their entirety in the amount of $397,450. 
  
BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, upon the adoption of this Ordinance, a certified copy hereof shall 
be filed with the County Clerk, and it shall be the duty of the County Clerk to abate the Pledged 
Taxes levied for the year 2022 payable 2023 in accordance with the provisions hereof. 
 
 

 
  



 

Respectfully Submitted, 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

 
 
 

AGREE  DISAGREE 

JOHN  BUTITTA, CHAIRMAN 
 

                                                       JOHN  BUTITTA, CHAIRMAN 

JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIRMAN                                           JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIRMAN 

  JEAN CROSBY 
 

                                                                                                      JEAN CROSBY 
 

JOE HOFFMAN   JOE HUFFMAN 

  KEITH MCDONALD 
 

                                                                         KEITH MCDONALD 
 

 
JOHN F. SWEENEY  JOHN F. SWEENEY 

  MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 

                                                                    MICHAEL THOMPSON 
   

 
The above and foregoing Ordinance was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this  day of  2023. 

 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 

 



 

  

 

Resolution Executive Summary 
 
Prepared By:   David J. Rickert - Chief Financial Officer 

Committee:   Finance Committee 

Committee Date:    February 16th, 2023 

Resolution Title: An Ordinance to abate the 2021B Alternative Revenue Bond Property Tax Levy  
   for the Year 2022 Payable 2023.  

County Code:   Not Applicable 

Board Meeting Date:  February 23rd, 2023 

Budget Information:  
 

Was item budgeted?    Yes                                                       Appropriation Amount:  Not Applicable 

If not, explain funding source:   Not Applicable 

ORG/OBJ/Project Code:  Not Applicable Budget Impact:   None  
 
Background Information:   
 
The County has issued a number of alternate bonds which have tax levies filed with the County Clerk. The 
abatement ordinances abate the tax levies filed for the alternate bonds for tax year 2022 payable 2023. 
The abatements must pass on or before tax extensions are done by the County Clerk. 
 
Recommendation:  

Approval of the ordinance abating the 2021B General Obligation Refunding Bonds (Alternative Revenue 
Source) Tax Levy for the Year 2022 payable 2023. 

 
Contract/ Agreement: Not Applicable  
 
 
Legal Review: Yes conducted by the states attorney. 



County Board:  02-23-2023 
 

ORDINANCE OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
Sponsored by:  John Butitta, Committee Chairman 
Submitted by:  Finance Committee 

2023 CO 

 
AN ORDINANCE TO ABATE THE GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING BONDS 

(ALTERNATE REVENUE SOURCE), SERIES 2021B BOND  
PROPERTY TAX LEVY FOR THE YEAR 2022 PAYABLE 2023 

 
 
WHEREAS, the County had issued General Obligation Bonds (Alternate Revenue Source), Series 
2012G (the “Prior Bonds”); and 
 
WHEREAS, the Prior Bonds were issued to pay the costs of constructing improvements along 
Baxter Road and acquisition of a waterworks system from the Village of Cherry Valley (the 
“water system”); and 
 
WHEREAS, the Prior Bonds were refinanced and retired on 25 March 2021.   
 
WHEREAS, $1,365,000 General Obligation Refunding Bonds (Alternate Revenue Source), 
Series 2021B, of The County of Winnebago, Illinois, for the purpose of refunding certain 
outstanding alternate bonds of said County, the pledge of certain revenues to the payment of 
principal and interest on said bonds and the levy of a direct annual tax sufficient to pay such 
principal and interest if the pledged revenues are insufficient to make such payment. 
 
WHEREAS, the Board has levied taxes for the General Obligation Refunding Bonds (Alternate 
Revenue Source), Series 2021B and filed the same with the County Clerk of the County (the 
"County Clerk"); and  
 
WHEREAS, the County has received notice from the County Clerk that the tax rate for the 
General Obligation Refunding Bonds (Alternate Revenue Source), Series 2021B Bonds for levy 
year 2022 payable 2023 calculated by the County Clerk in accordance with the provisions of the 
Property Tax Extension Limitation Law, as amended; and  
 
WHEREAS, the General Obligation Refunding Bonds (Alternate Revenue Source), Series 2021B 
Bond  Levy for levy year 2022 payable 2023 is not less than the amount of principal of and 
interest on the Bonds otherwise payable from Pledged Taxes levied for the year 2022 payable 
2023; and  
 



 

WHEREAS, it is necessary and in the best interests of the County that the Pledged Taxes levied 
for the year 2022 payable 2023 to pay the principal of and interest on the Bonds be abated; 
  
WHEREAS, there is at least $158,300 in the aforesaid Bond Fund to fully make all principal and 
interest payments on the aforementioned outstanding Alternate Bond Fund through December 
30, 2023; and,  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois, 
as follows: In accordance with Section 11. Abatement of Tax. The Pledged Taxes levied for the 
year 2022 payable 2023 for the General Obligation Refunding Bonds (alternate revenue source), 
series 2021B Bond are hereby abated in their entirety in the amount of $158,300. 
  
BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, upon the adoption of this Ordinance, a certified copy hereof shall 
be filed with the County Clerk, and it shall be the duty of the County Clerk to abate the Pledged 
Taxes levied for the year 2022 payable 2023 in accordance with the provisions hereof. 
 
 
 

 
  



 

Respectfully Submitted, 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

 
 
 

AGREE  DISAGREE 

JOHN  BUTITTA, CHAIRMAN 
 

                                                       JOHN  BUTITTA, CHAIRMAN 

JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIRMAN                                           JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIRMAN 

  JEAN CROSBY 
 

                                                                                                      JEAN CROSBY 
 

JOE HOFFMAN   JOE HUFFMAN 

  KEITH MCDONALD 
 

                                                                         KEITH MCDONALD 
 

 
JOHN F. SWEENEY 

 

JOHN F. SWEENEY 

  MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 

                                                                    MICHAEL THOMPSON 
   

 
The above and foregoing Ordinance was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this  day of  2023. 

 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 

 



Resolution Executive Summary 

Prepared By:     David J. Rickert - Chief Financial Officer 

Committee:     Finance Committee 

Committee Date:     February 16th, 2023 

Resolution Title:   An Ordinance to Abate the General Obligation Alternate Refunding Bonds  
 (Public Safety Sales Tax Alternate Revenue Source), Series 2022 Bonds Property 

  Tax Levy for the Year 2022 Payable 2023 

County Code:   Not Applicable 

Board Meeting Date:   February 23rd, 2023 

Budget Information:   Already budgeted 

Was item budgeted?  Yes  Appropriation Amount:  Not Applicable 

If not, explain funding source:   Not Applicable 

ORG/OBJ/Project Code:  Not Applicable Budget Impact:   None 

Background Information:  The County has issued a number of alternate bonds which have tax levies 
     filed with the County Clerk. The abatement ordinances abate the tax levies  
     filed for the alternate bonds for tax year 2022 payable 2023. The abatements 
     must pass on or before tax extensions are done by the County Clerk. 

Recommendation:  Approval of an ordinance to abate the General Obligation Alternate Refunding 
 Bonds (Public Safety Sales Tax Alternate Revenue Source), Series 2022 Bonds 
 Property Tax Levy for the Year 2022 Payable 2023. 

Contract/ Agreement:  Not Applicable 

Legal Review: 



County Board:  02-23-2023

ORDINANCE OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

Sponsored by:  John Butitta, Committee Chairman 
Submitted by:  Finance Committee 

2023 CO 

AN ORDINANCE TO ABATE THE GENERAL OBLIGATION ALTERNATE REFUNDING
BONDS (PUBLIC SAFETY SALES TAX ALTERNATE REVENUE SOURCE), SERIES 2022

BONDS PROPERTY TAX LEVY FOR THE YEAR 2022 PAYABLE 2023 

WHEREAS, the County of Winnebago, Illinois (County) had issued and had outstanding General 
Obligation Alternate Refunding Bonds (Public Safety Sales Tax Alternate Revenue Source), 
Series 2013A (the "2013A Bonds"); and, these Prior Bonds were refinanced and retired on 
August 11, 2022 reference Ordinance No. 2022-CO-057 and $12,500,000 General Obligation 
Alternate Refunding Bonds (Public Safety Sales Tax Alternate Revenue Source) Series 2022 
Bonds (the "2022 Bonds") were issued; and 

WHEREAS, the revenue source that is pledged to the payment of the principal of and interest 
on the 2022 Bonds are revenues received by the County from the special county retailers' 
occupation tax and service occupation tax for public safety purposes (the "Pledged Revenues"); 
and 

WHEREAS, the County Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois has levied taxes for the 
General Obligation Alternate Refunding Bonds (Public Safety Sales Tax Alternate Revenue 
Source) Series 2022 Bonds and filed the same with the County Clerk of the County (the "County 
Clerk"); and  

WHEREAS, the County has received notice from the County Clerk that the tax rate for the 
General Obligation Alternate Refunding Bonds (Public Safety Sales Tax Alternate Revenue 
Source) Series 2022 Bonds for levy year 2022 payable 2023 calculated by the County Clerk in 
accordance with the provisions of the Property Tax Extension Limitation Law, as amended; and 

WHEREAS, the General Obligation Alternate Refunding Bonds (Public Safety Sales Tax Alternate 
Revenue Source) Series 2022  Levy for levy year 2022 payable 2023 is not less than the amount 
of principal of and interest on the Bonds otherwise payable from Pledged Taxes levied for the 
year 2022 payable 2023; and  



 

 
 
WHEREAS, in accordance with Section 11. Abatement of Pledged Tax. Whenever the pledged 
revenues or other lawfully funds are available and on deposit in the Bond Fund in an amount 
necessary to pay any principal of or interest coming due on the Series 2022 Bonds in the 
following year and upon the deposit of said monies for said year, the County may abate the 
Alternate Bond Property Tax Levy for that year, with proper notification of such abatement filed 
with the County Clerk; and 
 
WHEREAS, there is at least $2,397,700 in the aforesaid Bond Account to fully make all principal 
and interest payments on the aforementioned outstanding General Obligation Alternate 
Refunding Bonds (Public Safety Sales Tax Alternate Revenue Source) Series 2022 Bonds through 
December 30, 2023; and 
 
WHEREAS, it is necessary and in the best interests of the County that the Pledged Taxes levied 
for the year 2022 payable 2023 to pay the principal of and interest on the Bonds be abated; 
  
NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois, 
as follows: In accordance with Section 11. Abatement of Pledged Tax. The Pledged Taxes levied 
for the year 2022 payable 2023 for the General Obligation Alternate Refunding Bonds (Public 
Safety Sales Tax Alternate Revenue Source) Series 2022 Bonds are hereby abated in their 
entirety in the amount of $2,397,700. 
  
BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, upon the adoption of this Ordinance, a certified copy hereof shall 
be filed with the County Clerk, and it shall be the duty of the County Clerk to abate the Pledged 
Taxes levied for the year 2022 payable 2023 in accordance with the provisions hereof. 
 
 
 

 
  



Respectfully Submitted, 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

AGREE DISAGREE 

JOHN  BUTITTA, CHAIRMAN  JOHN  BUTITTA, CHAIRMAN 

JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIRMAN JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIRMAN 

  JEAN CROSBY JEAN CROSBY 

JOE HOFFMAN JOE HUFFMAN 

  KEITH MCDONALD KEITH MCDONALD 

JOHN F. SWEENEY JOHN F. SWEENEY 

  MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 

MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 

The above and foregoing Ordinance was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this _______day of __________________________ 2023. 

ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 



 

  

 

Resolution Executive Summary 
 
Prepared By:   David J. Rickert - Chief Financial Officer 

Committee:   Finance Committee 

Committee Date:    February 16th, 2023 

Resolution Title: An Ordinance Abating Special Tax Roll for 2022 Levy Year for Properties within  
   the Special Service Area for the I39 Baxter Road County Water District Project 

County Code:   Not Applicable 

Board Meeting Date:  February 23rd, 2023 

Budget Information:  
 

Was item budgeted?    Yes                                                       Appropriation Amount:  Not Applicable 

If not, explain funding source:   Not Applicable 

ORG/OBJ/Project Code:  Not Applicable Budget Impact:   None  
 
Background Information:   
 
The 139/Baxter Road Water District included a Special Service Area as part of the project. The County 
Board approved a Special Tax Roll assessing a special tax against each property within the SSA for the 
administration and maintenance of the SSA and for the payment of principal and interest on the County's 
General Obligation Bonds. The Special Tax Roll for the SSA for levy year 2022 totaled $431,100. There are 
sufficient funds in the Special Tax Allocation Fund from the URL tax increment to make the payments on 
the bonds for June 30, 2023 and December 30, 2023. Based on sufficient funds being on hand the County 
Board can abate the Special Tax Roll for levy year 2022 payable 2023. 
 
Recommendation:  
 
Approval of the Ordinance Abating the Special Tax Roll for 2022 Levy Year Payable 2023. 
 
Contract/ Agreement: Not Applicable  
 
 
Legal Review: Yes, done in previous years. The dollar amount changes each year. 
 



County Board:  02-23-2023 
 

 
ORDINANCE OF THE COUNTY BOARD  

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 

Sponsored by:  John Butitta, Committee Chairman 
Submitted by:  Finance Committee 

2023 CO 
 

AN ORDINANCE ABATING SPECIAL TAX ROLL FOR 2022 LEVY  
YEAR FOR PROPERTIES WITHIN THE SPECIAL SERVICE AREA FOR  

THE 1-39/BAXTER ROAD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT PROJECT  
 

WHEREAS, on August 9, 2012, the County Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois, by   
Ordinance Number 2012-CO-056, approved establishing a Special Service Area ("SSA") for 
the I-39/Baxter Road County Water District Project; and, 
 
WHEREAS, on October 25, 2012, the County Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois, by 
Ordinance Number 2012-CO-072, approved an amendment to said establishing Ordinance, 
which enacted a Special Tax Roll assessing a special tax against each property lying within 
the SSA for the administration and maintenance of the SSA and for the payment of principal 
and interest on the County's General Obligation Bonds (Alternate Revenue Source), Series 
2012F, issued pursuant to the establishing Ordinance for the purpose of financing a part of 
the cost of construction and formation of said County Water District Project; and,  
 
WHEREAS, on March 25, 2021, the County Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois, by 
Ordinance Number 2021-CO-033, providing for (1) the issue of approximately $3,725,000 
General Obligation Refunding Bonds (Alternate Revenue Source), Series 2021A, for the purpose 
of refunding the County’s Series 2012F Bonds, (2) the pledge of certain revenues to the payment 
of principal and interest on the bonds and the levy of a direct annual tax sufficient to pay such 
principal and interest if the pledged revenues are insufficient to make such payment and (3) the 
sale of the bonds to the purchaser thereof; and, 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to an Intergovernmental Cooperation Agreement ("Agreement") 
between the County of Winnebago, Village of Cherry Valley and the Village of New Milford, 
dated June 6, 2012, the parties determined that the area in and around the Baxter Road 
interchange on 1-39 is appropriate for the formation of an Industrial Park Conservation Area 
to spur private investments and development defined in the Industrial Jobs Recovery Law 
("URL"); and,  

 
 
 



 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Agreement, the Special Tax Allocation Fund ("STAF" as defined 
in the URL), created with the tax increment financing will be placed under the control of 
Winnebago County to be administered for the length of the project; and, 
 
WHEREAS, funds deposited in the STAF generated from the URL District shall be used to pay 
for the payments on the SSA Bonds as first priority; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the Special Tax Roll for the SSA for levy year 2022 totaled $397,450; and, 
 
WHEREAS, there is sufficient funds from the URL increment in the STAF fund as of December 
22, 2022, to make the payments on the bonds for June 30, 2023 and December 30, 2023.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 
Illinois that the County Board hereby abate the Special Tax Roll for levy year 2022 payable 
2023 in the following amounts: 
 

 
 

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED that this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect forthwith 
immediately upon its adoption.  
 
BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED that the Clerk of the County Board shall deliver certified copies of 
this Ordinance to the Winnebago County Clerk, the Chief Financial Officer and the Winnebago 
County Director of Finance. 
  

 
 
 

  



 

Respectfully Submitted, 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

 
 
 

AGREE  DISAGREE 

JOHN  BUTITTA, CHAIRMAN 
 

                                                       JOHN  BUTITTA, CHAIRMAN 

JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIRMAN                                           JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIRMAN 

  JEAN CROSBY 
 

                                                                                                      JEAN CROSBY 
 

KEITH MCDONALD  KEITH MCDONALD 

  JOE HOFFMAN 
 

                                                                                JOE HOFFMAN 
 

 
JOHN F. SWEENEY  JOHN F. SWEENEY 

  MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 

                                                                    MICHAEL THOMPSON 
   

 
The above and foregoing Ordinance was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this  day of  2023. 

 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



 

  

 

Resolution Executive Summary 
 
Prepared By:   David J. Rickert - Chief Financial Officer 

Committee:   Finance Committee 

Committee Date:    February 16, 2023 
 
Resolution Title: Resolution Modifying the Budget of an American Recovery Act Project for RP011 
   Animal Service Building Contingency 

County Code:   Not Applicable 

Board Meeting Date:  February 23, 2023 
 
Budget Information:  
 

Was item budgeted?    Yes                                                       Appropriation Amount:  Not Applicable 

If not, explain funding source:   Not Applicable 

ORG/OBJ/Project Code:  Not Applicable Budget Impact:   None  
 
Background Information:   
In July 2021, the County Board approved the use of ARPA funds to address building needs at the 
Winnebago County Animal Services facility.  In October 2021, this project was reviewed and approved as 
an ARPA eligible project by Baker Tilly. 
 
 Winnebago County Board is amending the authorized funds available for this project in an 
amount not to exceed $133,271 for contingency expenses. 
 
Recommendation:   
Staff recommends approval of the resolution.  
 
Follow-Up:      
The Purchasing Department, along with the A&E firm and input from Brett Frazier, will finalize any 
necessary construction documents and issue any County POs after full Board approval.   
 
 



County Board:  February 23, 2023 
 

 
R E S O L U T I O N 

of the 
COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
Sponsored by:  John Butitta, Committee Chairman 
Submitted by:  Finance Committee 
 
 

2023 CR 
RESOLUTION MODIFYING THE BUDGET OF AN AMERICAN RECOVERY ACT PROJECT  

FOR RP011 ANIMAL SERVICE BUILDING CONTINGENCY 
 

WHEREAS, the Winnebago County Animal Services building is in need of renovations 
and an addition and the County Board already approved the projects competitive bids for 
solicitation 22B-2240; and, 

 

WHEREAS,  Winnebago County Animal Services building renovations project has been 
approved by Baker Tilly for the use of American Rescue Plan (ARPA) funds; and, 
 

WHEREAS, the renovation and addition project requires a contingency fund to cover 
unforeseen project expenses and fees; and, 

                                                          
       NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 
Illinois that the County is authorized expend an amount not to exceed $133,271 in ARAP 
funds for possible project contingency expenses 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and effective 

immediately upon its adoption and the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized to 
prepare and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to the Animal Services Administrator,  
Facilities Engineer, Director of Purchasing, Finance Director, County Board Office, and 
County Auditor.            

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Respectfully Submitted, 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

 
 
 

AGREE  DISAGREE 

JOHN  BUTITTA, CHAIRMAN 
 

                                                       JOHN  BUTITTA, CHAIRMAN 

JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIRMAN                                           JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIRMAN 

  JEAN CROSBY 
 

                                                                                                      JEAN CROSBY 
 

JOE HOFFMAN   JOE HUFFMAN 

  KEITH MCDONALD 
 

                                                                         KEITH MCDONALD 
 

 
JOHN F. SWEENEY  JOHN F. SWEENEY 

  MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 

                                                                    MICHAEL THOMPSON 
   

 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this  day of  2023. 

 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 











 

  Resolu�on Execu�ve Summary 
 
 

Human Resources  |  404 Elm St, Rm 220, Rockford, IL 61101  |  www.wincoil.us 
Phone: (815) 319- 4285 | Fax: (815) 319-4286   

 

 
Prepared By:  Tanya Harris 
Committee:    Finance Committee  
Committee Date: February 16, 2023 
Resolution Title:  Resolution authorizing settlement of a claim against the County of Winnebago 
entitled James Neal versus Winnebago County. 
Board Meeting Date: February 23, 2023 
 
Budget Information: 
 

Was item budgeted?    Yes                          Appropriation Amount:  
If not, explain funding source:    
ORG/OBJ/Project Code:  49400-43535    Budget Impact:  

 
 
Background Information:  Settlement for James Neal in the amount of $47,618.25.  
 
 
Recommendation:   The Finance Committee, chaired by John Butitta, has reviewed the settlements 
presented to the Board.  The Board is asked to approve this settlement in favor of the Committee’s 
recommendations at its February 16, 2023 meeting. 
 
Contract/Agreement:    
 
Legal Review:  Carol Hartline with Williams McCarthy LLP negotiated these settlements on behalf of 
Winnebago County. 
 
Follow-Up:   N/A 
 
 

http://www.wincoil.us/


Sponsored by: John Butitta, Committee Chairman 
 

 
 

R E S O L U T I O N 
of the 

 
COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
Sponsored by:  John Butitta 
Submitted by:  Finance Committee 

2023 CR 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING SETTLEMENT OF A CLAIM 
AGAINST THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO ENTITLED 

JAMES NEAL VERSUS WINNEBAGO COUNTY  
 

 WHEREAS, the County of Winnebago, Illinois, is involved in having  claims asserted against 
it by James Neal for injuries allegedly sustained while in the employment of the Facilities 
Department, and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the Plaintiff has offered to settle the above claims against the County of 
Winnebago for consideration payable in the amount of $47,618.25 for the settlement  funding 
for his Workers Compensation case; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, counsel for the County of Winnebago recommends that it is in the best 
interest of the County of Winnebago to settle the above referenced claims upon the terms of the 
proposed settlement. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 
Illinois that it does hereby authorize settlement of the claim entitled James Neal versus County 
of Winnebago for injuries allegedly sustained by James Neal while in the employment of the 
Facilities Department by payment of the amount of $47,618.25 for the settlement for permanent 
disability for a Workers Compensation case. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution for James Neal in the amount of 
$47,618.25 shall be in full force and effect immediately upon it adoption. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized to 
prepare and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to the County Auditor, Director of 
Purchasing, Human Resources Director, and Williams & McCarthy. 
 

 
 
 
 



2 
 

Respectfully Submitted, 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

 
 

AGREE  DISAGREE 

JOHN  BUTITTA, CHAIRMAN 
 

                                                        JOHN  BUTITTA, CHAIRMAN 

JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIRMAN                                           JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIRMAN 

  JEAN CROSBY 
 

                                                                                                      JEAN CROSBY 
 

  JOE HOFFMAN 
 

                                                                                JOE HOFFMAN 
 

 
KEITH MCDONALD  KEITH MCDONALD 

JOHN F. SWEENEY  JOHN F. SWEENEY 

  MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 

                                                                    MICHAEL THOMPSON 
   

 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this  day of  2023. 

 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 

LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 
 



 

ZONING 
 COMMITTEE 



Attachment 
 ZONING COMMITTEE  

OF THE COUNTY BOARD AGENDA 
 February 23, 2023  
 

Zoning Committee……….………….......………..……….....…Jim Webster, Committee Chairman 

       PLANNING AND/OR ZONING REQUESTS: 

  TO BE LAID OVER:     

1.  Z-01-23 A MAP AMENDMENT TO REZONE 5.0+- ACRES FROM THE AG, 
AGRICULTURAL PRIORITY DISTRICT TO THE RA, RURAL AGRICULTURAL 
RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT (A SUB-DISTRICT OF THE RA DISTRICT) requested by 
Michael Lloyd, Property Owner, for the property that is commonly known as 16843 Hartman 
Road, Davis, IL 61019 in Laona Township. 

  PIN: 01-19-300-014                                                                                            C.B. District 2 
 Lesa Rating: Very High                                 Consistent W/2030 LRMP-Future Map: NO 

ZBA Recommendation:  APPROVE (5-0) 
ZC Recommendation: TBD  

  
2.  Z-02-23 A MAP AMENDMENT TO REZONE 1.99+- ACRES FROM THE RR, RURAL 

RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT (A SUB-DISTRICT OF THE RA DISTRICT) TO THE RE, 
RURAL ESTATE RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT (A SUB-DISTRICT OF THE RA DISTRICT) 
requested by Mark Bestul, Property Owner, for the property that is commonly known as  6499 
Alice Lane, Rockton, IL 61072 in Shirland Township.        

 PIN: 03-18-451-011                                                                                 C.B. District 2 
      Lesa Rating: N/A                                          Consistent W/2030 LRMP-Future Map: YES 

ZBA Recommendation:  APPROVE (5-0) 
ZC Recommendation: TBD  
 

TO BE VOTED ON: 
 

3. A RESOLUTION CALLING FOR THE GOVERNOR AND GENERAL ASSEMBLY TO PROTECT 
LOCAL CONTROL OF ZONING AND LAND USE WITH REGARD TO COMMERCIAL SOLAR 
FARMS AND WIND POWER ENERGY FACILITIES (WIND FARMS) (ILLINOIS HOUSE BILL 
4412/PUBLIC ACT 102-1123) 
ZC Recommendation: TBD  
 

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 

4.  COMMITTEE REPORT (ANNOUNCEMENTS) - for informational purposes only; not 
intended as an official public notice):  

 
• Chairman, Brian Erickson, hereby announces that a Zoning Board of Appeals (ZBA) 
 meeting is tentatively scheduled for Wednesday, April 12, 2023, at 5:30 p.m. in 
 Room 303 the County Administration Building.   
 
• Chairman, Jim Webster, hereby announces that the next Zoning Committee (ZC) meeting        
     is tentatively scheduled for Wednesday, April 26, 2023, at 5:30 p.m. in Room 303 of the    
 County Administration Building.   

 



 

   
       COUNTY BOARD MEETING: FEBRUARY 23, 2023 

 
RESOLUTION 

OF THE 
COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
2023 CR _______ 

 
SUBMITTED BY:  ZONING COMMITTEE  

 
SPONSORED BY: JIM WEBSTER, JAIME SALGADO AND JOHN GUEVARA 

 
 
A RESOLUTION CALLING FOR THE GOVERNOR AND GENERAL ASSEMBLY TO 

PROTECT LOCAL CONTROL OF ZONING AND LAND USE WITH REGARD TO 
COMMERCIAL SOLAR FARMS AND WIND POWER ENERGY FACILITIES (WIND 

FARMS) (ILLINOIS HOUSE BILL 4412/PUBLIC ACT 102-1123) 
 
 

WHEREAS, Counties are authorized by the Counties Code (55 ILCS 5/1-1001 et seq.) 
to adopt and develop zoning regulations; and 

WHEREAS, Section 5-12001 of the Counties Code provides "the county board or board 
of county commissioners, as the case may be, of each county, shall have the power to regulate 
and restrict the location and use of buildings, structures and land" and to regulate and restrict the 
intensity of such uses - to establish building or setback lines outside the limits of cities, villages 
and incorporated towns which have in effect municipal zoning ordinances (55 ILCS 5/5-12001); 
and 

WHEREAS, House Bill 4412 (HB 4412) and new Public Act 102-1123 was signed into 
law on January 27, 2023 and it mandates procedural requirements regarding siting approval, 
setback requirements or a special use permit for commercial solar farms and wind energy 
facilities; and  

WHEREAS, the changes contained in HB 4412/ Public Act 102-1123 or legislation with 
similar language and implications ignore differences that occur locally from county to county 
across the state of Illinois and remove a county board's ability to regulate those local differences 
and address the concerns of their residents; and 

WHEREAS, HB 4412/ Public Act 102-1123 or similar legislation and implications 
further undermines local control in that it substitutes state level legislative determination for the 
local control exercised by county zoning commissions, zoning boards of appeals, and county 
boards; and 

WHEREAS, as an unfunded mandate, HB 4412/ Public Act 102-1123 specifically 
requires counties to update their ordinances to be in compliance with the state statute within 120 



 

   
days, which is a tight timeframe for county staff to review and revise its ordinances and 
processes; and 

WHEREAS, consistent with our zoning authority, Winnebago County, Illinois (and 
other Counties throughout the state of Illinois), has adopted zoning and setback regulations 
related to solar farms and wind energy facilities and has made substantial revisions to suit the 
needs of our County and the residents of Winnebago County, Illinois; and 

WHEREAS, the County Board of County of Winnebago, Illinois adopted a Unified 
Development Ordinance, Chapter 90 of the Winnebago County Code of Ordinances (Winnebago 
Code), as amended from time to time, which includes regulations for solar and wind farms; and  

WHEREAS, the County Board is the best entity to support the needs, interests, and 
safety of its residents due to direct feedback and understanding of the County's needs, while 
State officials or industry leaders who do not reside in these Counties may not be aware of the 
most relevant and current information. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois as follows: 

1. The County Board of Winnebago County opposes HB 4412/ Public Act 102-1123 
or any similar legislation that would undermine the County Board's local zoning authority in 
regulating wind and solar farms. 

2. The Winnebago County Board urges HB 4412/ Public Act 102-1123 or any 
similar legislation to be amended in the next veto session. Specifically, the Winnebago County 
Board requests the 103rd Illinois General Assembly amend the legislation to exempt Winnebago 
County, Illinois from all conditions that adversely impact Winnebago County, Illinois residents 
and that undermines its local zoning authority in regulating wind and solar farms. Further, to 
provide state funding directly to counties to enable them to comply with this new mandate.  

3.  The Winnebago County Board supports those counties who have chosen not to 
permit solar or wind farms in their communities. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Resolution shall be in full force and effect 
immediately upon its adoption. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Clerk of the County Board is hereby directed 
to prepare and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to Governor Pritzker, the legislative 
leaders of both chambers of the Illinois General Assembly, and the representatives and senators 
representing this County, County Administrator, County Planning and Zoning Officer, County 
Director of Development Services and the County Board Chairman. 

 

 

 

 

 



 

   
                                                                                                              Respectfully Submitted, 
                                                                                                             ZONING COMMITTEE 
 
Agree  Disagree 
 
 
 

  

Jim Webster, Chairman 
 
 

 Jim Webster, Chairman 
 
 

Angie Goral 
 
 

 Angie Goral 
 

Paul Arena 
 
 

 Paul Arena 
 
 

Aaron Booker 
 

 Aaron Booker 
 
 

John Guevara 
 

 John Guevara 
 
 

Tim Nabors  Tim Nabors 
 
 

Dave Tassoni  Dave Tassoni 
 
 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this  day of  2023. 

 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

Joseph V. Chiarelli 
Chairman of the County Board 
of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 

 
 

Lori Gummow 
Clerk of the County Board  
of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 

 
 
 

 

  
 
 
 

 



 

ECONOMIC 
DEVELOPMENT 

 COMMITTEE 





























































































 

Public Safety & 
Judiciary 

Committee 



 
 

   
    Resolution Executive Summary 

 

Purchasing Department | 404 Elm Street, Rockford, IL 61101 Room 202 |  www.wincoil.gov  
Phone: (815) 319- 4380  |  Email: purchasing@purchasing.wincoil.gov    

    ResExSummary 20.1 version 

 
Prepared By:   Purchasing Department on behalf of the Juvenile Detention Center 
Committee:    Public Safety and Judiciary Committee 
Committee Date:   February 15, 2023 
Board Meeting Date:  February 23, 2023 
Resolution Title:   Resolution Authorizing the County Board Chairman to Amend                       

Contract for Health Care Services for Detainees of the                           
Juvenile Detention Center   

Budget Information: 
 

Was item budgeted?    yes                                 Appropriation Amount:    

If not, explain funding source:    

Budget Impact:   See Exec Summary Attachment A for budget details 
 

Background Information:   
The Purchasing Department sent out Request for Proposals for Inmate Health Care Services for 
both the WCSO and the Juvenile Detention Center in July of 2018.  The University of Illinois 
College of Medicine - Rockford was awarded the two separate multi-year contracts.  The contract 
terms allowed for an initial one (1) year term, followed by renewal options.  This Amendment is 
the final option term of the contract agreement and also allows for an extension of 6 months 
which will align this and all future Health Care Service contracts with County’s fiscal year end date 
of September 30.  This will eliminate mid-year budget requests for Court Services.                                                         
The services provided have been very satisfactory. 
 
Recommendation:   
Julie McCray-Grotto, Juvenile Detention Superintendent, and Debbie Jarvis, Director of Court 
Services, recommend approval of the contract Amendment.  The budget increase is $15,358 over 
the next 18 months.   
See Executive Summary Attachment A for budget details.  The increase is mostly due to UIC’s 
nursing labor cost increases.   
 
Contract/Agreement:  
The contract renewal agreement extension is for 18 months and will commence April 1, 2023 
and run through September 30, 2024.   
 
Follow-Up:   
Purchasing Department will go out for bid on a new multiyear Health Care Services RFP in 2024. 

         

http://www.wincoil.gov/


     County Board Meeting: February 23, 2023 
  
  

R E S O L U T I O N 
of the 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 

 
 
Sponsored by:  Brad Lindmark, Committee Chairman 
Submitted by:  Public Safety and Judiciary Committee 
 

Resolution Authorizing the County Board Chairman to Amend Contract for Health 
Care Services for Detainees of the Juvenile Detention Center 

 
WHEREAS, since 2002 the University of Illinois College of Medicine at Rockford 

(UICOMR) has provided, under contract with the County, health services to the detainees 
of the Winnebago County Juvenile Detention Center; and, 

WHEREAS, the County and UICOMR have agreed to a contract renewal for their Health 
Care Services contract that runs through March 31, 2023, for health services for the detainees 
of the Juvenile Detention Center;  and,  

WHEREAS, the Public Safety Committee approves the 18-month contract renewal of the 
Health Care Services agreement; and,    

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois, that the County Board Chairman is hereby authorized and directed to 
execute an agreement amending the Health Care Services contract agreement it has with the 
University of Illinois College of Medicine - Rockford. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized and 
directed to prepare and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to Juvenile Detention 
Superintendent, Director of Court Services, Director of Purchasing, Finance Director, County 
Board and County Auditor. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 Respectfully submitted, 
PUBLIC SAFETY AND JUDICIARY COMMITTEE 

 

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 
 

  

BRAD LINDMARK, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 BRAD LINDMARK, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

AARON BOOKER 
 
 

 AARON BOOKER 
 

KEVIN MCCARTHY  KEVIN MCCARTHY 
 
 

JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

                                                                          JEAN CROSBY 
 

 
CHRIS SCROL 
 
 

 CHRIS SCROL 
 

ANGIE GORAL 
 
 

 ANGIE GORAL 
 

TIM NABORS 
 
 

 TIM NABORS 
 

The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2023. 

 

 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 

 



Executive Summary Attachment A

                  Juvenile Detention Center:  Health Care Services  - Budget

Proposed Budget for  Apr 2024 - Sept 2024     Proposed Budget for Apr 2023 - Mar 2024 Current Year Budget Apr 2022  - Mar 2023
Proposed Budget Proposed Budget  Budget

Personnel Expenses Personnel Expenses Personnel Expenses
Provider Salaries 16,932 Provider Salaries 32,561 Provider Salaries 29,072
Staff Salaries 36,141 Staff Salaries 69,170 Staff Salaries 65,132
Staff EH/OT 10,816 Staff EH/OT 20,800 Staff EH/OT 22,277
Benefits 18,665 Benefits 35,789 Benefits 33,684

Total Salary/Fringe 82,554 Total Salary/Fringe 158,320 Total Salary/Fringe 150,165

Contractual Contractual Contractual
Mobilex 1,092 Mobilex 2,100 Mobilex 2,100
Mental Health 14,231 Mental Health 28,462 Mental Health 28,462

Total Contractual Staff 15,323 Total Contractual Staff 30,562 Total Contractual Staff 30,562

Other Expenses Other Expenses Other Expenses
Supplies-Office & Admin Expenses 442 Supplies-Office & Admin Expenses 850 Supplies-Office & Admin Expenses 525
Medical Supplies 2,860 Medical Supplies 5,500 Medical Supplies 3,150
Staff Training 260 Staff Training 500 Staff Training 500
Malpractice 715 Malpractice 1,375 Malpractice 700
Administrative Overhead 6,573 Administrative Overhead 12,641 Administrative Overhead 12,641

Total Other Expenses 10,850 Total Other Expenses 20,866 Total Other Expenses 17,516

Total Expenses 108,727 Total Expenses 209,748 Total Expenses 198,243

Total Support Requested 108,727$        Total Support Requested 209,748$           Total Support Approved 198,243$        

Percent Increase 6 Month Extension 3.67% Percent Increase 12 Month Proposed 5.80% Current Year's Budget

Dollar Increase 6 Month Extension 3,853$                 Dollar Increase 12 Month Proposed 11,505$                   



 
 

   
    Resolution Executive Summary 

 

Purchasing Department | 404 Elm Street, Rockford, IL 61101 Room 202 |  www.wincoil.gov  
Phone: (815) 319- 4380  |  Email: purchasing@purchasing.wincoil.gov    

    ResExSummary 20.1 version 

 
Prepared By:   Purchasing Department on behalf of the WCSO 
Committee:    Public Safety and Judiciary Committee 
Committee Date:   February 15, 2023 
Board Meeting Date:  February 23, 2023 
Resolution Title:   Resolution Authorizing the County Board Chairman to Amend Contract for 

Health Care Services for the Inmates of the Winnebago County Jail   
 

Budget Information: 
 

Was item budgeted?                                        Appropriation Amount:    

If not, explain funding source:    
Budget Impact:    See Exec Summary Attachment A for details 

 
Background Information:   
The Purchasing Department sent out Request for Proposals for Inmate Health Care Services for 
both the WCSO and the Juvenile Detention Center in July of 2018.  The University of Illinois 
College of Medicine - Rockford was awarded the two separate five (5) year contracts.  The 
contract terms allowed for an initial one (1) year term, followed by renewal options. This 
proposed Amendment is the final option term of the contract agreement and also allows for an 
extension of 6 months which will align this and all future Health Care Service contracts with 
County’s fiscal year end date of September 30.  This will eliminate mid-year budget requests for 
by the WCSO.  The services provided have been very satisfactory. 
  
Recommendation:  
Justin Egler, Captain - Corrections Bureau recommends approval of contract extension 
Amendment.  The budget increase is $246,167 over the next 18 months.  
 
 See Executive Summary Attachment A for budget details.  The increase is mostly due to UIC’s 
nursing labor cost increases.    
 
Contract/Agreement:  
The contract renewal agreement is for 18 months and will commence April 1, 2023 and run 
through September 30, 2024.   
 
Follow-Up:   
Purchasing Department will go out for bid on a new multiyear Health Care Services RFP in 2024. 

         
         

http://www.wincoil.gov/


     County Board Meeting: February 23, 2023 
  
  

R E S O L U T I O N 
of the 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 

 
 
Sponsored by:  Brad Lindmark, Committee Chairman 
Submitted by:  Public Safety and Judiciary Committee 
 

Resolution Authorizing the County Board Chairman to Amend Contract for Health 
Care Services for the Inmates of the Winnebago County Jail  

 
WHEREAS, since 2002 the University of Illinois College of Medicine at Rockford 

(UICOMR) has provided, under contract with the County, health services to the inmates of 
the Winnebago County Jail; and, 

WHEREAS, the County and UICOMR have agreed to a contract renewal for their Health 
Care Services contract that runs through March 31, 2023, for health services for the inmates 
of the Winnebago County Jail;  and,  

WHEREAS, the Public Safety Committee approves the 18-month contract renewal of the 
Health Care Services agreement; and,     

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois, that the County Board Chairman is hereby authorized and directed to 
execute an agreement amending the Health Care Services contract agreement it has with the 
University of Illinois College of Medicine - Rockford. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized and 
directed to prepare and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to the Sheriff, Corrections 
Captain, Director of Purchasing, Finance Director, County Board and County Auditor. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



         Respectfully submitted, 
          PUBLIC SAFETY AND JUDICIARY COMMITTEE 

 

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 
 

  

BRAD LINDMARK, CHAIRMAN 
 

 BRAD LINDMARK, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

AARON BOOKER 
 
 

 AARON BOOKER 
 

JEAN CROSBY  JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

ANGIE GORAL 
 

 ANGIE GORAL 
 
 

KEVIN MCCARTHY 
 
 

 KEVIN MCCARTHY 
 

TIM NABORS 
 
 

 TIM NABORS 
 

CHRIS SCROL 
 
 

 CHRIS SCROL 
 

The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2023. 

 

 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 

 



Executive Summary Attachment A

                                 JAIL:  Health Care Services  - Budget

Proposed Budget for Apr 2024 - Sept 2024 Proposed Budget for Apr 2023  - March 2024 Current Budget for  Apr 2022 - March 2023
Proposed Budget Proposed Budget Proposed Budget

Personnel Expenses Personnel Expenses Personnel Expenses
Provider Salaries 142,302 Provider Salaries 273,658 Provider Salaries 210,825
Staff Salaries 745,299 Staff Salaries 1,433,268 Staff Salaries 1,350,051

Contingent PRN increases -21,760
Staff EH/OT 72,800 Staff EH/OT 140,000 Staff EH/OT 200,491
Benefits 292,698 Benefits 562,882 Benefits 527,764

Total Salary/Fringe 1,253,100 Total Salary/Fringe 2,409,808 Total Salary/Fringe 2,267,371

Contractual Contractual Contractual
Dental 33,162 Dental 63,773 Dental Contract(Oates) 73,039
Mobilex 16,120 Mobilex 31,000 Mobilex 31,000
Physical Therapy OSTI 29,420 Physical Therapy OSTI 56,576 Physical Therapy OSTI 56,575

Total Contractual Staff 78,701 Total Contractual Staff 151,349 Total Contractual Staff 160,614

Other Expenses Other Expenses Other Expenses
Supplies Office & Admin Expenses 8,320 Supplies Office & Admin Expenses 16,000 Supplies Office & Admin Expenses 14,700
Accounting & Payroll 22,245 Accounting & Payroll 42,779 Accounting & Payroll 39,975
Medical Supplies 34,008 Medical Supplies 65,400 Medical Supplies 48,668
Lab Billing 9,464 Lab Billing 18,200 Lab Billing 17,325
Staff Training 2,600 Staff Training 5,000 Staff Training 5,000
Courier & Travel 2,860 Courier & Travel 5,500 Courier & Travel 5,500
Medications 88,909 Medications 170,978 Medications 140,000
Malpractice 5,028 Malpractice 9,670 Malpractice 5,800
Administrative Overhead 70,200 Administrative Overhead 135,000 Administrative Overhead 141,288

Total Other Expenses 243,634 Total Other Expenses 468,527 Total Other Expenses 418,256

Vendor Supported Expenses Vendor Supported Expenses Vendor Supported Expenses
Medication Administration 53,040 Medication Administration 102,000 Medication Administration 102,000
Clerical Support and Supplies 2,402 Clerical Support and Supplies 4,620 Clerical Support and Supplies 4,620

Total Vendor Supported Expense 55,442 Total Vendor Supported Expense 106,620 Total Vendor Supported Expense 106,620

Total Support Requested $1,630,878 Total Support Requested $3,136,303 Total Support Approved $2,952,861

Increase 6 Month Extension 4%  Increase 12 Month Proposed 6.21% Current year budget 

Dollar Increase 6 month Extension 62,725.50$                  Dollar Increase 12 Month Proposed 183,441.76$              



 
 

   
    Ordinance Executive Summary 

 

  
4517 North Main St  |  Rockford, IL 61103  |  www.WinnebagoAnimals.org  |  www.wincoil.gov  

Phone: (815) 319-4100  |  Fax: (815) 319-4101  |  Email: wcas@wcas.wincoil.gov  
 

 
Prepared By: Animal Services Department 
Committee: Public Safety & Judiciary 
Committee Date: February 15, 2023 
Ordinance Title: Ordinance Amending Chapter 14 Of The Winnebago County Code Of Ordinances 

 Regarding Registration and Inoculation Requirements for Dogs and Cats     
County Code: Chapter 14 – Animal Control Ordinance      
Board Meeting Date: February 23, 2023 
 
Budget Information: 

Was item budgeted?    NA                           Appropriation Amount:   NA 
If not, explain funding source:   NA 
ORG/OBJ/Project Code:                                Budget Impact:    

 
Background Information: Winnebago County ordinance (as well as state statute) require that owners of 
dogs and cats must inoculate their pets against rabies and register their pets with the county animal 
services department.  This requirement to inoculate and register is a crucial component of the effort to 
prevent rabies infection.  Currently ordinance notes that failure to register a dog or cat “at the time of 
inoculation” is a failure to register.  Penalties can result in a fine of up to $500 and a doubling of the 
registration fee.  The majority of the nearly 60,000 registered pets in Winnebago County receive their 
inoculation at a veterinarian located within the county and each of those veterinary clinics provide 
Winnebago County registration tags at the time of vaccination of the pet.  Some residents, however, 
receive their veterinary care from clinics outside the county where Winnebago County registration tags 
may not be available.  This make it a challenge for county residents to comply with ordinance and have 
their pets registered “at the time of inoculation”. 
 
Recommendation: Approve an amendment to Winnebago County Code of Ordinances as presented.  
Specifically, adding language clarifying that residents whose animals are inoculated by veterinarians 
located outside of Winnebago County and which do not offer Winnebago County registration tags for 
purchase will not be subject to penalty if registration is completed within seven calendar days of 
inoculation.  
 
Contract/Agreement:  NA 
 
Legal Review:  The State’s Attorney’s Office assisted in drafting the ordinance amendment. 
 
Follow-Up: If approved, the Animal Services Department will update public information relating to this 
amendment including at popular veterinarian clinics outside Winnebago County.  Staff will be trained on 
the application of the new ordinance language.           

http://www.winnebagoanimals.org/
http://www.wincoil.gov/
mailto:wcas@wcas.wincoil.gov


                 County Board Meeting 
          February 23, 2023 

 
ORDINANCE 

OF THE  
COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
2023 CO _____ 

 
SUBMITTED BY:  PUBLIC SAFETY AND JUDICIARY COMMITTEE 

 
SPONSORED BY:  BRAD LINDMARK 

 
ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 14 OF THE 

WINNEBAGO COUNTY CODE OF ORDINANCES REGARDING REGISTRATION 
AND INOCULATION REQUIREMENTS FOR DOGS AND CATS 

 
WHEREAS, Chapter 14 of the Winnebago County Code is entitled “Animal Control 

Ordinance of Winnebago County”; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Animal Control Act, 510 ILCS 5/3, grants the authority to county boards 
to adopt an ordinance mandating the registration and inoculation of both dogs and cats within the 
county; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Section 8 of the Animal Control Act, 510 ILCS 5/8, requires owners of dogs 
and owners of cats that are companion animals to have their pet(s) inoculated against rabies, and 
for veterinarians who perform such inoculations on dogs and cats to obtain tags from the animal 
control department of the county in which their office is located and comply with registration 
and tag ordinances of the county; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Animal Control Act promotes the general public health and welfare in 
that it provides a structure to minimize the possibility of rabies transmission, including a 
requirement that county animal registration be accompanied by proof that said animal is 
inoculated against rabies; and 
 

WHEREAS, sections 14-66 and 14-67 of the Animal Control Ordinance of Winnebago 
County sets forth the registration and inoculation requirements for dogs and cats; and 
 

WHEREAS, the sale of Winnebago County registration tags by veterinarians located 
within Winnebago County and performing rabies inoculations is required by state law and local 
ordinance; and 

 
WHEREAS, however residents of Winnebago County may choose to engage 

veterinarians located outside of Winnebago County for rabies inoculations and who do not offer 
Winnebago County registration tags for purchase; and 

 



WHEREAS, these residents who choose to engage veterinarians located outside of the 
county shall be given a seven (7) day timeframe between inoculation and procurement of 
registration tags from Winnebago County Animal Services to comply with County Code; and  
 

WHEREAS, Animal Services is recommending that the following changes to the 
registration and inoculation requirements for dogs and cats be enacted. 

 
 NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED, by the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois, that Sections 14-66 and 14-67 of the Winnebago County Code be amended 
to read as follows: 
 

Sec. 14-66. - Registration and inoculation of dogs.  
 
(a) Required; certificate. Every owner of a dog four months or more of age shall cause 

such dog to be inoculated against rabies and registered. Evidence of such rabies 
inoculation shall be entered on a certificate, the form of which has been approved by 
the state department of agriculture and the certificate shall be signed by the 
veterinarian administering the vaccine.  
 

(b) Registration fees; tags. Upon inoculation, the owner shall register such dog by 
presenting to the administrator or his authorized agents the certificate of inoculation, 
together with the appropriate fee. The owner may request the registration time period 
to correspond with the inoculation time period.  The owner shall be supplied with a 
rabies inoculation tag for each dog registered, and such tag shall be worn by each 
dog that is required to be registered whenever such dog is off the property of its 
owners and not within a motor vehicle. The tag shall be in a form and color 
approved by the state department of agriculture. The method of distributing the tag 
and collecting registration fees shall be determined by the county board.  

 
(c) Failure to register; penalty. Failure to register a dog at the time of the inoculation or 

failure to comply with subsection (a) of this section shall be an offense punishable 
by a fine of up to $500.00 and shall result in the registration fee being doubled. For 
purposes of this subsection, “at the time of the inoculation” shall be defined as: (a) 
on the same calendar day, for inoculations performed by veterinarians located within 
Winnebago County or (b) within seven (7) business days for inoculations performed 
by veterinarians located outside of Winnebago County and who do not offer 
Winnebago County registration tags for purchase. 

 
Sec. 14-67. - Registration and inoculation of cats.  
 
(a) Required; certificate. Every owner of a cat four months or more of age shall cause 

such cat to be inoculated against rabies. Evidence of such rabies inoculation shall be 
entered on a certificate, the form of which has been approved by the state department 
of agriculture, and the certificate shall be signed by the veterinarian administering 
the vaccine.  
 



(b)  Registration fees; tag. Upon inoculation, the owner shall register such cat by 
presenting to the administrator or his authorized agent, the certificate of inoculation 
together with the appropriate fee.  The owner may request the registration time period to 
correspond with the inoculation time period.  The owner shall be supplied with a 
registration tag for each cat registered, and the tag shall be worn by each cat whenever 
the cat is off the property of its owner and not within a motor vehicle. The tag shall be in 
a form and color approved by the state department of agriculture. The method of 
distribution of the tags and collection of the registration fees shall be determined by the 
county board.  
 
(c) Failure to register; penalty. Failure to register a cat at the time of the inoculation or 
failure to comply with subsection (a) of this section shall be an offense punishable by a 
fine of up to $500.00 and shall result in the registration fee being doubled. For purposes 
of this subsection, “at the time of the inoculation” shall be defined as: (a) on the same 
calendar day, for inoculations performed by veterinarians located within Winnebago 
County or (b) within seven (7) business days for inoculations performed by veterinarians 
located outside of Winnebago County and who do not offer Winnebago County 
registration tags for purchase. 

 
 

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that this Ordinance shall be effective upon its adoption. 
 

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that the Clerk of the County Board is hereby directed to 
prepare and deliver a certified copy of this Ordinance to the County Administrator and 
Administrator of the Winnebago County Animal Services Department. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



                                                                                                              Respectfully Submitted, 
 
                                                                 PUBLIC SAFETY & JUDICIARY COMMITTEE 
 
Agree  Disagree 
 
 
 

  

Brad Lindmark, Chairperson 
 
 

 Brad Lindmark, Chairperson 
 
 

Aaron Booker 
 
 

 Aaron Booker 
 

Jean Crosby 
 
 

 Jean Crosby 
 
 

Angie Goral 
 

 Angie Goral 
 
 

Kevin McCarthy   Kevin McCarthy  
 
 

Tim Nabors   Tim Nabors  
 
 

Chris Scrol  Chris Scrol 
 
 
 
The above and foregoing Ordinance was adopted by the County Board of the County of  
 
Winnebago, Illinois, this ______ day of ___________________, 2023.  
 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

Joseph V. Chiarelli 
Chairman of the County Board 
of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 

 
 

Lori Gummow 
Clerk of the County Board  
of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 

 
 
 

 

 
 



 

UNFINISHED 
BUSINESS 



 

FINANCE 
COMMITTEE 



Ordinance Executive Summary 

Prepared By: 

Committee: 

Committee Date: 

Ordinance Title: 

Dave Rickert and Finance Department 

Finance Committee 

February 2nd, 2023

Ordinance for Approval of Budget Amendment for the Circuit Clerk

 County Code:  Not Applicable 

Board Meeting Date: February 9th, 2023

 Budget Information: 

Was item budgeted? No Appropriation Amount: N/A 

If not, explain funding source: Fund Balance 

ORG/OBJ/Project Code: Various Budget Impact: 141,088 

Background Information: 

Recommendation: 

Contract/ Agreement: 

Legal Review: 

Follow-Up: 

On December 5, 2022, Circuit Clerk Thomas A. Klein received the 

attached press release. The Circuit Clerk's Office is requesting 5 

additional staff members to meet the needs of these additional 

Judges. 

Circuit Clerk Thomas A. Klein recommends approval. 

Not Applicable 

Not Applicable 

Not Applicable 



1 

 

2023 Fiscal Year Finance: February 2, 2023 
 Lay Over: February 9, 2023 
Sponsored by:  Final Vote: February 23, 2023 
John Butitta, Finance Committee Chairman   
 
 
 

  

 

2023 CO 
 
TO:  THE HONORABLE BOARD MEMBERS OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
The Winnebago County Finance Committee presents the following Ordinance amending the 
Annual Appropriation Ordinance for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2023 and recommends 
its adoption. 

 
ORDINANCE 

  
WHEREAS, On December 5, 2022, Circuit Clerk Thomas A. Klein received the attached press 
release. The Circuit Clerk's Office is requesting 5 additional staff members to meet the needs of 
these additional Judges. 
 
 WHEREAS, the Winnebago County Board adopted the “Annual Budget and Appropriation 
Ordinance” for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2023 at its September 30, 2022 meeting; 
and,  
     
WHEREAS, 55ILCS 5/6-1003(2014), states, “After the adoption of the county budget, no further 
appropriations shall be made at any other time during such fiscal year, except as provided in 
this Act.  Appropriations in excess of those authorized by the budget in order to meet an 
immediate emergency may be made at any meeting of the board by a two-thirds vote of all the 
members constituting such board, the vote to be taken by ayes and nays and entered on the 
record of the meeting.” 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, that the County Board deems that pursuant to provisions 
as set forth in 55ILCS 5/6-1003(2014), certain conditions have occurred in connection with the 
operations of the County which are deemed to be immediate emergencies; therefore, the 
increases detailed per the attached Request for Budget Amendment are hereby authorized for 
Amendment #23-011 Circuit Clerk. 
 
  



Respectfully Submitted, 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

 
 

 
AGREE  DISAGREE 

JJOHN  BUTITTA, CHAIR 
 

                                                      JOHN  BUTITTA, CHAIR 

JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIR                                           JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIR 

  JEAN CROSBY 
 

                                                                                                      JEAN CROSBY 
 

JOE HOFFMAN  JOE HOFFMAN 

  KEITH MCDONALD 
 

                                                                         KEITH MCDONALD 
 

 

JOHN F. SWEENEY 
 

JOHN F. SWEENEY 

  MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 

                                                                    MICHAEL THOMPSON 
   

 

The above and foregoing Ordinance was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this  day of  2023. 

 
 

 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
 

LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 







 

  

 

Ordinance Executive Summary 
Prepared By:   Tami Goral 

Committee:   Finance Committee 

Committee Date:     02/02/2023 

Resolution Title:                 An Ordinance for Approval of a Budget Adjustment for the Sheriff’s Office  

County Code:   Winnebago County Purchasing Ordinance 

Board Meeting Date:      02/09/2023  

Budget Information: 
 
Was item budgeted? No                                                                                               Amount:   $289,802 

If not, explain funding source:   815 Entertainment LLC, dba Hard Rock Casino Rockford 

ORG/OBJ/Project Code                                                                                                      Budget Impact:  N/A                                                                                                 
 
Background Information:  The Winnebago County Sheriff’s Department has entered into a police-
servicing contract with the 815 Entertainment LLC, dba Hard Rock Casino Rockford for one year.  This 
agreement provides funding for 4,380 hours of police coverage per year (12 hours per day for 365 days 
per year).      
 
Recommendation:     
          
   
 
Contract/Agreement: One year beginning January 1, 2023 and ending December 31, 2023. 
 
 
Legal Review:  The Winnebago County State’s Attorney’s Office has reviewed the agreement  
 
 
Follow-Up:   The Winnebago County Sheriff’s Department will proceed with agreement(s) executions. 



1 
 

2023 Fiscal Year Finance: February 2, 2023 
 Lay Over: February 9, 2023 
Sponsored by:  Final Vote: February 23, 2023 
John Butitta, Finance Committee Chairman   
 
 
 

  

 
2023 CO 

 
TO:  THE HONORABLE BOARD MEMBERS OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
         The Winnebago County Finance Committee presents the following Ordinance amending the 
Annual Appropriation Ordinance for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2023 and recommends 
its adoption. 

 
ORDINANCE 

  
WHEREAS, the Winnebago County Sheriff’s Department has entered into a police-

servicing contracting with the 815 Entertainment LLC, dba Hard Rock Casino Rockford to one 
year. This agreement provides funding for 4,380 hours of police coverage per year. 
 
             WHEREAS, the Winnebago County Board adopted the “Annual Budget and Appropriation 
Ordinance” for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2023 at its September 30, 2022 meeting; 
and,  
     
 WHEREAS, 55ILCS 5/6-1003(2014), states, “After the adoption of the county budget, no 
further appropriations shall be made at any other time during such fiscal year, except as provided 
in this Act.  Appropriations in excess of those authorized by the budget in order to meet an 
immediate emergency may be made at any meeting of the board by a two-thirds vote of all the 
members constituting such board, the vote to be taken by ayes and nays and entered on the 
record of the meeting.” 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, that the County Board deems that pursuant to 
provisions as set forth in 55ILCS 5/6-1003(2014), certain conditions have occurred in connection 
with the operations of the County which are deemed to be immediate emergencies; therefore, 
the increases detailed per the attached Request for Budget Amendment are hereby authorized 
for Amendment #23-008 Sheriff’s Casino Overtime. 
 



2 
 

Respectfully Submitted, 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

 
 
 

AGREE  DISAGREE 

JOHN  BUTITTA, CHAIR 
 

                                                      JOHN  BUTITTA, CHAIR 

JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIR                                           JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIR 

  JEAN CROSBY 
 

                                                                                                      JEAN CROSBY 
 

JOE HOFFMAN  JOE HOFFMAN 

  KEITH MCDONALD 
 

                                                                         KEITH MCDONALD 
 

 
JOHN F. SWEENEY 

 

JOHN F. SWEENEY 

  MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 

                                                                    MICHAEL THOMPSON 
   

 
The above and foregoing Ordinance was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this  day of  2023. 

 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 
  

 



10/5/2022
SHERIFF

0001

DEPT CODE
ACCT. 

NO. PROJECT ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION
BEGINNING 

BUDGET
ADJUSTED 
BUDGET

INCREASE 
(DECREASE)

REVISED BUDGET 
AMOUNT

Expenses:

24000 41130 Over-Time $830,070 289,802$              1,119,872.28$           

Revenue:

24000 34805 SH-Community Sheriff SVCS ($310,000) $0 (289,802.00)$       (599,802.00)$            

0$                         -$                              

Reason budget amendment is required:

Revenue Source:

Casino Rockford for one year.  The agreement provides funding for 4,380 hours of police coverage per year (12 hours

N/A
Potential alternatives to budget amendment:

2023
WINNEBAGO COUNTY

FINANCE  COMMITTEE
REQUEST FOR BUDGET AMENDMENT

AMENDMENT NO:
SUBMITTED BY:

BA23-008

24000

DATE SUBMITTED:
DEPARTMENT:

FUND#:

Impact to fiscal year 2023 budget:

TOTAL ADJUSTMENT:

DEPT. BUDGET NO.

The Sheriff's Department has entered into a police servicing contract with the 815 Entertainmnet LLC, dba Hark Rock

Approval by staff liaison:

815 Entertainment LLC, dba Hard Rock Casino Rockford

per day for 365 days per year).  Billing will be done on a monthly basis.

GARY CARUANA

$289,802



 

  
Appointments 

 
 



 

NEW BUSINESS 



 

ANNOUNCEMENTS & 
COMMUNICATIONS 



 

County Clerk  |  404 Elm St, Rm 104, Rockford, IL 61101  |  www.wincoil.us 
Phone: (815) 319-4250  |  Fax: (815) 969-0259  |  Email: CountyClerk@wincoil.us 

 

 
Announcements & Communications 
Date: February 23, 2023 
Item: Correspondence to the Board 
Prepared by: County Clerk Lori Gummow 
 

Governing Statute(s):  State of Illinois Counties Code 55 ILCS 5/Div. 3-2, Clerk 
 
County Code: Ch 2. Art. II. Div. 4, Sec. 2.86 – Record Keeping & Communications 
 
Background: The items listed below were received as correspondence.  
 

1. County Clerk Gummow received from the United States Nuclear Regulatory 
Commission the following: 
 
a. Byron Station – Integrated Inspection Report 05000454/2022004 and 

05000455/2022004 
 

b. Federal Register / Vol. 88, No. 25 / Tuesday, February 7, 2023 / Notices 
 

2. County Clerk Gummow received from Charter Communications the Quarterly 
Franchise Fee Payment for the following: 

 
a. Township of Harlem 
b. Township of Rockton 
c. Township of Roscoe 

 
3. County Clerk Gummow received from Nicor Gas a letter and brochure regarding 

keeping the community and natural gas facilities safe.  

http://www.wincoil.us/
mailto:CountyClerk@wincoil.us
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs4.asp?DocName=005500050HDiv%2E+3-2&ActID=750&ChapterID=12&SeqStart=14400000&SeqEnd=16300000
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs4.asp?DocName=005500050HDiv%2E+3-2&ActID=750&ChapterID=12&SeqStart=14400000&SeqEnd=16300000
https://library.municode.com/il/winnebago_county/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=COCO_CH2AD_ARTIICOBO_DIV4RUPR_S2-86RECO
https://library.municode.com/il/winnebago_county/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=COCO_CH2AD_ARTIICOBO_DIV4RUPR_S2-86RECO


 

Adjournment 


	Revised Agenda
	Awards, Presentations, Public Hearings & Public Participation
	Approval of Minutes
	Consent Agenda
	Appointments
	David Loria
	Extension Board
	Report of Standing Committees
	Finance Committee
	Ordinance Abating 2012C State Income Tax Alternate Bond Property Tax Levy
	Ordinance to Abate 2016A Public Safety Sales Tax Alternative Bond Property Tax Levy
	Ordinance to Abate 2016D Public Safety Sales Tax Alternative Bond Property Tax Levy
	Ordinance to Abate 2016E Public Safety Sales Tax Alternative Bond Property Tax Levy
	Ordinance to Abate 2017C Tort Property Tax & Quarter Cent Sales Tax Alternative Bond Property Tax Levy
	Ordinance Abating Tax hereto Levied to pay the Principle of & interest on Bonds
	Ordinance to Abate 2020A Alternative Revenue Bond Property Tax Levy
	Ordinance to Abate 2020B Alternative Revenue Bond Property Tax Levy
	Ordinance to Abate General Obligation Refunding Bonds Series 2021A 
	Ordinance to Abate 2021B Alternative Revenue Bond Property Tax Levy
	Ordinance to Abate General Obligation Alternate Refunding Bonds Series 2022
	Ordinance Abating Special Tax Roll for 2022 Levy Year for Properties within Special Service Area
	Resolution Modifying Budget of American Recovery Act Project
	Ordinance to Amend Budget for Inmate Medical Contract
	Resolution Authorizing Settlement of Claim Against Cty. of Winn. entitled James Neal vs. Winn. Cty.
	Zoning Committee
	Resolution - House Bill 4412
	Economic Development Committee
	Resolution Electing to Opt-In to IL Electronics Recycling Program for Program Year 2024
	Public Safety & Judiciary Committee
	Resolution Authorizing Board Chairman to Amend Contract for Health Care Services for Detainees
	Resolution Authorizing Board Chairman to Amend Contract for Health Care Services for Inmates
	Ordinance Amending Chapter 14 of Winn. Cty. Code of Ordinances Re: Registration & Inoculation Requirements
	Unfinished Business
	Finance Committee
	Ordinance for Approval of Budget Amendment for Circuit Clerk
	Ordinance for Approval of Budget Amendment for Sheriff's Office
	Appointments
	New Business
	Announcements & Communications
	Adjournment



